
 

1 

 

 
LOCAL HIGHWAYS PANEL 
Thursday, 24th March, 2011 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Philippa Sewell - Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: psewell@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564532 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors: Ms S Stavrou (Chairman), R Bassett (Vice-Chairman), R Barrett, W Breare-Hall, 
Ms C Edwards, C Finn, D Jacobs, Mrs S Jones, B Judd, L Leonard, A Lion, Mrs J Sutcliffe, 
Ms S Watson and D Wixley 
 
Local Council Members: C Buttling, K Angold-Stephens, Mrs D Borton, A Buckley and 
A Purkiss 
 
 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   
 

  To report the appointment of any substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. MINUTES  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Local Highways Panel held on 3 
February 2011. 
 

 4. MATTERS ARISING  (Pages 7 - 22) 
 

  Officers to report back on: 
 
(1) Epping Parking Review; 
 
(2) High Road, Ongar; and 
 
(3) Manor Road, Chigwell (report attached; Safety Audit also attached for 
information). 
 



Local Highways Panel  Thursday, 24 March 2011 
 

2 

 5. LOCAL HIGHWAYS PANEL REPORT  (Pages 23 - 108) 
 

  To receive report from the Highways Liaison Officer. 
 

 6. FUTURE OF THE LOCAL HIGHWAYS PANEL   
 

  To discuss future options for the Panel.  
 

 7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 
 

 8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   
 

  Thursday 16 June 2011, Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 
 



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Local Highways Panel Date: Thursday, 3 February 2011 
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.00  - 9.51 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

Councillors Ms S Stavrou (Chairman), R Bassett (Vice-Chairman), R Barrett, 
W Breare-Hall, C Finn, D Jacobs, B Judd, L Leonard, Mrs J Sutcliffe, 
Ms S Watson and D Wixley 

  
Parish reps: Councillors K angold-Stephens, A Buckley, C Buttling, and A Purkiss 
  
Other 
Councillors: 

Councillors Mrs P Smith, Mrs J H Whitehouse, J M Whitehouse and 
Mrs L Wagland 

  
Apologies: Mrs S Jones and A Lion 

 
Parish Councillor Mrs D Borton 

 
 

Officers 
Present: 

Mrs R Tanfield (Highways Liaison Officer), P Sewell (Democratic Services 
Assistant), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer), K Durrani 
(Assistant Director (Technical)) and A Ruffell (Senior Traffic Engineer) 

  
Also in 
Attendance: 

County Councillor V Metcalfe 
  
 

78. Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitute members for the meeting.  
 

79. Minutes  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2010 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
80. Terms of Reference  

 
The terms of reference were noted. 
 

81. Matters Arising  
(a) Epping Parking Review 
The draft order for the Epping phase of the review had been published. 120 
responses from the consultation had been received and were currently being 
reviewed and compared with comments from previous schemes. The appropriate 
Portfolio Holders from the County Council were being contacted, after which 
information would be disseminated to members.  
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



Local Highways Panel  Thursday, 3 February 2011 

2 

(b) Parking Restrictions in Meadow Road, Loughton 
A petition signed by 80% of the residents of Meadow Road, Loughton had been 
submitted and discussed at a Local Highways Panel meeting held on 23 March 2010. 
Residents were requesting a scheme to ensure they be given priority over 
Sainsburys staff and local shoppers for parking spaces in this road.  
Members noted that District officers had secured additional on-site parking for 
Sainsburys staff in order to ease pressure on residents parking in Meadow Road. 
The results seen so far were minimal. It was noted that funding had to be secured 
before projects could be formalised, and as none was currently available it was for 
residents to consider whether they would be willing to provide the funding 
themselves.   
(c) Pedestrian Crossing for High Road, Ongar 
As the cost of widening the footpath to accommodate a zebra crossing at this site 
had rendered the plan impractical, alternatives were currently being considered. An 
alternative crossing site had been identified, but funding was required to carry out the 
necessary feasibility studies. Officers were currently trying to secure Section 106 
funding for these.  
 RESOLVED: 

(1)  Officers to report back on estimated cost for the feasibility study;  
 (2)  Officers to approach the landowner of the original site again; and 

(3) A copy of the documents to be sent to Councillor Lesley Wagland as 
Portfolio Holder for Legal and Estates. 

 (d) Winter Maintenance 
At the meeting on 25 November 2010, the Panel had been informed of the changes 
that had been made to Essex County Council Winter Maintenance Schemes. This 
included a trial scheme being launched which delivered grit directly to Parishes to be 
distributed locally. Members noted that the update report given on the pilot scheme 
was not definitive as the project was still underway. Feedback was currently being 
received and would be synthesised once the project was complete. 
Essex County Council Officers informed members that additional funding had been 
secured from the government for repairs and maintenance of highways. Compliments 
were extended to the Reactive Maintenance Initiative (RAMI) on their quick and 
effective repair work.  
 

82. Local Highways Panel Report  
 
The Highways Liaison Officer presented a report outlining progress on the current 
programme of works. Members noted that the majority of the maintenance schemes 
had been completed, with the exceptions shown in the document.  
 
The Epping Forest Transport Strategy implementing cattle grids had been developed, 
installing four of the planned thirteen grids, and the City of London were piloting an 
invisible fence scheme. If this trial were successful it would not be necessary to 
install the remaining grids.  
 

Page 4



Local Highways Panel  Thursday, 3 February 2011 

3 

It was noted that funding totalling £5,000 had been given to the EFDC Arboriculturist, 
who has been tasked to undertake tree replacement work on the locations previously 
identified by members.  
(a) Manor Road, Chigwell 
 
Members of the Panel were updated on the progress made in the installation of a 
crossing on this road. County officers had recently undertaken a Safety Audit, which 
had deemed traffic speeds too high to install a zebra crossing. Physical calming 
measures would be necessary in order to reduce speeds to the appropriate level to 
install a zebra crossing, but these were not deemed feasible as Manor Road is the 
B173 and a secondary distributor. As a popular informal crossing point for 
schoolchildren, Members expressed extreme concern regarding this site. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

(1) Members to receive a copy of the full Safety Audit report; 
 
(2) ECC to: 

 
(a) contact the Safety Camera Partnership on the criteria and costs for 
installing a camera; 
 
(b) meet with Councillor Wagland, Councillor Stavrou and a local resident on 
site to discuss the issue; and, 

 
(c) in conjunction with the Chairman, approach the appropriate County 
Portfolio Holder with regards to carrying the funding over into the next 
financial year to be used for a crossing.  

 
(b) Future Maintenance 
 
Members discussed the indicative programme of future maintenance schemes 
included in the report, which would not be formalised until next year’s budget had 
been confirmed.  
 

RESOLVED: 
  

That if funding for the above mentioned crossing scheme could not be carried 
into 2011/12, the following schemes be completed: 

  
  Location:    Cost: 
 
 - Mount Pleasant Road, Chigwell £11,017.00 

- Hobbes Cross Road, Epping  £6,222.80 
 - Limes Avenue, Chigwell  £5,170.00 
 - Hows Mead, North Weald  £10,340.00 
 - Queensway, Ongar   £5,170.00 
 
 With Mount Pleasant Road, Chigwell taking priority.  
 
Concern was also expressed over the length of the current list of highway 
improvement requests needing attention kept in reserve, should supplementary or 
additional funding become available. Members were asked to each choose three 
sites of high priority to be submitted to the Highway Liaison Officer. A report would be 

Page 5



Local Highways Panel  Thursday, 3 February 2011 

4 

given at the next Panel meeting detailing this revised list, and outlining the amount of 
support for each one.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That a notice be published in the Bulletin asking all members to 
submit their proposals by 28 February 2011; and 

  
 (2) That Essex County Council officers contact parishes. 
 

83. Grass Verge Damage  
 
The Highways Liaison Officer provided members with a report outlining County 
Council guidelines concerning parking on grass verges. Members discussed the 
potential for residents to install their own physical measures to prevent this, provided 
they subsequently took responsibility for the maintenance of any measures installed. 
It was noted that any resident contemplating this course of action should first seek 
advice from County Highways Officers. 
 

84. Any Other Business  
 
(a) Future Direction of the Local Highways Panel 
 
The Panel discussed the efficiency of the current arrangements of the LHP, 
comparing it with similar panels around Essex. Panel members believed that the 
issue warranted careful consideration and should be discussed further at a later date.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

(1) That this be raised at a future meeting; and  
 
(2) That Members write to the Highways Liaison Officer with any thoughts 

or ideas. 
 
(b) Essex County Council Restructuring 
 
County officers informed the Panel that the reorganisation at Essex County Council 
was now complete, and the Highways officers remained. They advised of a number 
of specialised teams that had been created, including a specific team for the area. 
Detailed information regarding the new arrangements was currently being circulated 
to the Chief Executives of District Councils, and members would be informed 
presently.  
 

85. Date of Next Meeting  
 
Noted that the next meeting would be held on Thursday 24 March 2011 at 7.00 p.m. 
in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Epping.   
 

 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 6



MANOR ROAD, CHIGWELL 
REPORT BY: LOCALISM AND CUSTOMER SERVICE TEAM 

ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Background 
Officers have investigated the proposal for the Zebra crossing put forward by the Local Highway 
Panel. Designs have been drawn up and a Safety Audit completed as part of the process. The 
Safety Audit has recommended that additional safety measures be added to the scheme, in order 
to ensure this proposal is safe once it has been installed on site. The main problem identified is 
that the 85th percentile speeds are above that recommended for the provision of a safe crossing 
facility on a 30mph road.  These measures were not accounted for when formulating the initial 
estimate and as such, mean the funding available is insufficient to implement the full scheme.  

 

Funding 
Officers have approached the Cabinet Member for Highways and Transportation, Councillor 
Norman Hume, to request that the funding be carried over to the 2011/12 financial year. However, 
as it will not be possible to deliver a Zebra crossing within the funding available, the Cabinet 
Member has not agreed to carry over the funding. In light of this and the need to ensure 
appropriate use of the available funding, Officers have undertaken the maintenance schemes as 
agreed by the Panel, as the funding could not be moved to the following year. 

 

Solutions 
Having met with Councillors Mrs Stavrou, Mrs Wagland and Knapman, a number of possible 
solutions were discussed, not just in terms of installing a crossing, but bringing about other safety 
improvements. These are detailed further below. It was considered that a number of differing 
schemes, of different costs should be investigated. 
 

Proposed installation of pedestrians ahead/in carriageway’ signs 

 Figure 1 Diagram 544.1 
This sign is only used to warn of pedestrians in carriageway where there are not any proper 
footways. “Where pedestrians frequently use a road without proper footways, diagram 544.1 may 
be used to warn drivers of the likely presence of pedestrians in the carriageway.” (Department for 
Transport, Traffic Signs Manual, Chapter 4, Paragraph 9.4) Thus, this will not be pursued. 
 

 

 Figure 2 Diagrams 545 and 546 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



This sign is required to be located 45-110m from the hazard to which it is warning against, as 
determined by the Department for Transport, Traffic Signs Manual, Chapter 4, which in this 
instance is the school. However, as no school/s or playgrounds are located on this road, this 
cannot be pursued either. 
 

Proposed relocation of the speed camera 
The Road Safety Team has investigated the justification for a speed camera at this site. Moving 
the existing camera near to the location will not be considered at this time, as this camera was 
necessary at the time of installation and is providing a casualty reduction function. 
  
The proposed site does not meet the current accident validation criteria for a safety camera.  The 
provision of a camera at this site would require a departure from current ECC criteria and thus, is 
not a step ECC wish to take at present. 
  
Officers have assessed the accident patterns along the length of road and there would still seem to 
be a slight problem at the junction with Tomswood Road, despite treatment two years ago.  This 
relates to turning vehicle/conflict between vehicles rather than pedestrian related accidents. 
 
The safety engineering team would support the introduction of a central pedestrian refuge in Manor 
Road (near the junction of Tomswood Road) and it could form a gentle chicane measure if there 
was sufficient highway land available. This would have a twofold benefit of larger speed reductions 
than just a simple island, whilst providing a crossing place for pedestrians. Members may be 
interested to read the Traffic Advisory Leaflet 12/97, attached. 
 
This scheme would be of a substantial nature and would include the lowering of statutory 
undertakers’ apparatus, relocation of existing street lighting columns and a complete change of the 
road alignment. The design would obviously need to take into account bus and HGV manoeuvring, 
which may prohibit the design.  Full validation of the scheme would need to be carried out before 
reporting back to the Panel. 
 
This scheme, due to its nature, would need to be capitally funded. 
 
Solutions to collision patterns at the junction in isolation 
This is being pursued and investigated by the Road Safety Engineering Team. At the time of 
writing this report, information is not available, but will be reported in due course. 
 
Proposed mini-roundabout with one-way on one arm (most likely to be Turpins Lane) 
Extensive consultation, in terms of real-time planning, would need to be undertaken on this 
scheme, in the surrounding area and with the local Police for their support for such a measure, to 
ensure enforcement at the junction. 
 
The nature of the project will see the implementation taking approximately 18 months and will need 
to be funded through capital budgets.  Again, this proposal would need to be fully validated as it 
would inevitably require extensive remodelling of the junction and diversion of statutory 
undertakers equipment. 
 

Proposed Signal Controlled Crossing at junction 
This is currently being investigated by Officers and can be reported in due course. 

 

Page 8



Conclusion 
All of the above solutions will require initial feasibility studies and validation to determine their 
viability and costs of implementation. Although the funding sources are not likely to be met by the 
Local Highway Panel, reports can continue to be fed through to the Panel in due course, and 
comments feedback by the Officers undertaking the investigations. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



B173 MANOR ROAD, CHIGWELL 
PROPOSED ZEBRA CROSSING 

ROAD SAFETY AUDIT STAGE 1/2

Dated 12th January 2011 
Registration Code: 6043 
Audit Invoice Code: 2536 HESW 1300  

Page 11



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report has been produced as a result of a Stage 1/2 Road Safety Audit (RSA) carried out on 
proposals to construct a Zebra Crossing on Manor Road, Chigwell.  The audit was requested by 
Essex County Councils West Area Office (Design Team Contact: Jo Carrington). The Audit was 
carried out during January 2011. 

1.2 It is proposed to construct the Zebra Crossing approximately 20m to the west of the crossroads 
junction of the B173 Manor Road, Tomswood Road and Turpins Lane. Manor Road is a single 
carriageway road with one lane in each direction and is subject to a 30 mph speed limit. There are 
footways on both sides of the road and street lighting is present. The surrounding land use is mainly 
residential. Manor Road is on a relatively steep hill. 

1.3 The report has been prepared for submission directly to Vicky Duff of ECC based at County Hall in 
Chelmsford. 

1.4 The RSA Team was formed of members of the ECC Road Safety Engineering Team (based at 
County Hall, Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1QH). This report was prepared by those officers. The RSA 
Team membership was as follows: 

  Chris Whinney (RSA Team Leader) - Senior Road Safety Engineer (ECC), and 

  Gary Webster (RSA Team Member) - Road Safety Engineer (ECC). 

1.5 The terms of reference for the RSA are as described in Chapter 2 of HD 19/03.  The Audit Team has 
examined and reported only on the road safety implications of the proposals and has not examined 
or verified the compliance of the design to any other criteria. This safety audit does not perform a 
‘Technical Check’ function on these proposals. 

1.6 The Stage 1/2 RSA was undertaken and comprised an examination of the documents provided to the 
Audit Team by the design organisation (listed below) and a daytime visit to the proposed site on 
Thursday 6th January 2011. During the site visit the weather was cold, overcast and wet. 

1.7 Documents submitted for audit included; 

 Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010) – Proposed Zebra 
Crossing, Manor Road, Chigwell. 

 Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-Sign-01 (dated December 2010) – Proposed 
Sign Design, Manor Road, Chigwell. 

 Three year personal injury collision data (15/11/2007 to 15/11/2010).
 Traffic speed data. 

1.8 All comments and recommendations are referenced to the detailed design drawings and the 
locations have been indicated on the plan appended to this report. 

Page 12



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

2.0 DEPARTURES FROM STANDARD 

2.1 No Departures from Standard have been reported to the Audit Team. 

Page 13



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

3.0 ITEMS RAISED AT THIS STAGE 1/2 AUDIT 

3.1 GENERAL

3.2 PROBLEM

Location(s): At location of proposed Zebra Crossing. 

Summary: Increased potential for collisions involving pedestrians during wet weather.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

Whilst it was raining during the site visit, the Audit Team noted excessive amounts of surface water 
running down Manor Road across the full width of the carriageway. In these conditions it is highly 
likely any vehicles braking sharply to stop for crossing pedestrians would aqua-plane, increasing the 
risk of them failing to stop in time.   

Image 1: Surface water running across full-width of carriageway. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended drainage improvements are carried out to reduce the risk of vehicles failing to 
stop for crossing pedestrians in wet conditions. 

Page 14



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

3.3 THE ALIGNMENT 

3.4 PROBLEM

Location(s): At location of proposed Zebra Crossing. 

Summary: Increased potential for collisions involving pedestrians.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

The westbound approach to the Zebra Crossing is on a steep downward sloping gradient. Whilst on 
site the audit team observed vehicular speeds to be high. Site speed data shows that the measured 
85th percentile speed on the westbound approach is 35.2 mph. Zebra Crossings are not 
recommended where 85th percentile approach speeds are greater than 35mph. Where traffic speeds 
are higher than 30 mph, pedestrians will be exposed to the risk of more serious injury if precedence 
is not conceded for any reason. The combination of high approach speeds and increased braking 
distances due to the downhill gradient is likely to result in the increased potential for collisions 
involving motorists failing to stop for crossing pedestrians. The presence of the crossroads junction 
in close proximity (and where there have been a recent number of serious collisions) means 
motorists may also be distracted, again increasing the risk of them failing to observe crossing 
pedestrians.

Image 2: B173 Manor Road approach to the proposed zebra crossing. 

RECOMMENDATION

Zebra Crossings ‘should not be installed on roads with an 85th percentile speed of 35mph or above’ 
(LTN 1/95). It is recommended that physical traffic calming measures are provided on the 
approaches to the proposed zebra crossing to reduce vehicle speeds and subsequently reduce the risk 
and severity of any collisions involving crossing pedestrians. Vehicle speeds should then be re-
assessed to ensure that they have been reduced prior to installing the zebra crossing.

Page 15



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

3.5 THE JUNCTIONS 

No problems identified. 

3.6 NON-MOTORISED USERS 

3.7 PROBLEM

Location(s): At location of proposed Zebra Crossing. 

Summary: Increased potential for collisions involving visually impaired pedestrians.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

It is not proposed to provide tactile paving and dropped kerbs at the crossing. This could result in 
visually impaired pedestrians failing to be directed to the crossing point, who may then cross within 
the controlled area (away from the crossing ‘carpet’) where approaching motorists would not expect 
pedestrians to cross. The absence of dropped kerbs will also create a trip hazard and accessibility 
issues for all crossing users. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that tactile paving and dropped kerbs are provided to ensure visually impaired 
pedestrians cross at the correct location and that the crossing is accessible for all users.

3.8 SIGNING, LINING AND LIGHTING 

3.9 PROBLEM

Location(s): Tomswood Road approach to Manor Road. 

Summary: Increased potential for collisions involving crossing pedestrians.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

The proposed Zebra Crossing warning sign (to TSRGD Diagram No. 544) with distance/direction 
plate located on Tomswood Road could confuse motorists and lead them to think the Zebra Crossing 
is located down Audleigh Place rather than Manor Road.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the proposed warning sign should be moved closer to Manor Road, beyond 
Audleigh Place to reduce the risk of driver confusion.

Page 16



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

3.10 PROBLEM

Location(s): Tomswood Road & Turpin’s Lane approaches to Manor Road. 

Summary: Incorrect distance plates shown with zebra crossing warning signs could lead to 
confusion over the location of the zebra crossing

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 & PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-Sign-01 (dated 
December 2010). 

It is proposed to provide zebra crossing warning signs to TSRGD dia.544 supplemented with 
distance and direction to hazard plates to TSRGD dia.573 within Tomswood Road and Turpin’s 
Lane on the approaches to their junction with Manor Road. The distances shown on the 
supplementary plates appear to be incorrect and may mislead motorists to the location of the zebra 
crossing within Manor Road. Traffic Signs manual Chapter 4, paragraph 18.5 states; “Diagram 573 
is placed in advance of a junction, indicating the distance along the road from that junction to the 
hazard. This distance is measured from the junction and not from the sign.”

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the distances shown on the supplementary plates to TSRGD dia.573 are 
amended to indicate the distance between the junction and the zebra crossing. 

3.11 PROBLEM

Location(s): At location of proposed Zebra Crossing. 

Summary: Increased potential for night-time collisions involving pedestrians.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

No details of improvements/alterations to street lighting have been supplied for audit. The Audit 
Team noted that the existing street lighting appeared old and that lighting levels may not be 
provided to current standards. Motorists could fail to see crossing pedestrians if the proposed 
crossing is not adequately illuminated during the hours of darkness.   

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that a street lighting review is undertaken and improvements made to street 
lighting to ensure crossing pedestrians are clearly visible during the hours of darkness.  

3.12 PROBLEM

Location(s): At location of proposed Zebra Crossing. 

Summary: Increased potential for collisions involving crossing pedestrians.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

Buff coloured High Friction Surfacing is currently located on both approaches to the Manor 
Road/Tomswood Road/Turpin’s Lane junction. However, it is not proposed to extend the existing 
High Friction Surfacing up to the proposed pedestrian crossing point on the westbound approach. 
This could result in motorists failing to stop for crossing pedestrians. Also, it is not proposed to 
remove the existing High Friction Surfacing on the eastbound approach where it passes through the 

Page 17



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

crossing carpet. This will reduce the conspicuity of the ‘black & white’ Zebra Crossing stripe 
markings and therefore increase the potential for motorists to fail to stop for pedestrians on both 
approaches to the crossing.

Image 3: Existing High Friction Surfacing at the Manor Road/Tomswood Road junction. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the existing buff coloured High Friction Surfacing is extended up to the 
crossing studs on the westbound approach and removed where it passes through the crossing carpet 
on the eastbound approach (to ensure ‘black & white’ Zebra Crossing stripe markings are provided). 
Also, ensure that a minimum of 50m of High Friction Surfacing is provided on both approaches. 

3.13 PROBLEM

Location(s): At location of proposed Zebra Crossing. 

Summary: Increased potential for collisions involving crossing pedestrians.

Drawing No. PT04-D6-Manor Road Zebra-01 (dated December 2010). 

It is not proposed to install temporary ‘New Zebra Crossing Ahead’ signs to TSRGD Diagram No. 
7014 on the approaches to the crossing on completion of construction works. Motorists will not 
receive adequate warning of the new crossing, increasing the risk of collisions involving motorists 
failing to stop for crossing pedestrians. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that temporary ‘New Zebra Crossing Ahead’ signs to TSRGD Diagram No. 7014 
be provided on the approaches to the crossing for a period not exceeding three months.  

Page 18



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

4.0 ADDITIONAL NOTES 

4.1   Whilst on site it was noted that pedestrians tended to cross Manor Road to the east of the junction 
rather than to the west (where it is proposed to install the crossing). A pedestrian survey should be 
carried out to check where the desire line is to ensure optimum usage of the crossing facility. 

Page 19



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

5.0 AUDIT TEAM STATEMENT

We certify that this audit has been undertaken in accordance with HD 19/03. 

AUDIT TEAM LEADER 

Chris Whinney  (BSc Hons) Signed:
Senior Road Safety Engineer 
Safety Engineering Team   Date:  
Essex County Council 
County Hall 
Chelmsford 
Essex, CM1 1QH 

AUDIT TEAM MEMBERS 

Gary Webster   Signed:
Road Safety Engineer 
Safety Engineering Team   Date:  
Essex County Council 
County Hall 
Chelmsford 
Essex, CM1 1QH 

Page 20



B173 Manor Road, Chigwell, Proposed Zebra Crossing – Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 

6.0 TIME RECORD

Desktop Study:  1 hour (1/2 hr x 2 Engineers) 

Site Visit (day):  4 hours (2 hrs x 2 Engineers) 
   
Audit Report:  3 hours 

Audit Check:  1/2 hour 

Total   8 ½  hours 

Page 21



B
17

3 
M

an
or

 R
oa

d,
 C

hi
gw

el
l, 

Pr
op

os
ed

 Z
eb

ra
 C

ro
ss

in
g 

– 
R

oa
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 A

ud
it 

St
ag

e 
1/

2 

7.
0 

ST
A

G
E

 1
/2

 P
R

O
B

L
E

M
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

Pr
ob

le
m

s 
ge

ne
ra

l t
o 

th
e 

w
ho

le
 s

ite
: 3

.1
3

3.
9,

 3
.1

0 

3.
2,

 3
.4

 

3.
11

, 3
.1

2 

3.
7

3.
10

Page 22



E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

st
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
o

f 
w

o
rk

s 
20

10
/1

1

Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 IN
IT

IA
T

IV
E

 //
 R

O
A

D
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£1

91
,8

04
O

n
g

ar
C

rip
se

y 
A

ve
nu

e
T

hr
ou

gh
ou

t
£3

2,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

ed
O

n
g

ar
T

oo
t H

ill
 R

oa
d

V
ar

io
us

£2
6,

32
6

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed
B

u
ck

h
u

rs
t 

H
ill

Lo
w

er
 Q

ue
en

s 
R

oa
d

T
hr

ou
gh

ou
t

£2
7,

70
8

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

B
u

ck
h

u
rs

t 
H

ill
B

17
0 

R
od

in
g 

La
ne

Lo
ug

ht
on

 W
ay

 to
 R

iv
er

 R
od

in
g

£4
9,

04
2

X
X

W
or

ks
 a

re
 p

ro
gr

am
m

ed
 fo

r 
21

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
1

B
u

ck
h

u
rs

t 
H

ill
A

10
4 

E
pp

in
g 

N
ew

 R
oa

d
J/

w
 B

ro
ok

 R
oa

d/
C

hu
rc

h 
R

oa
d

£4
0,

72
8

X
C

om
pl

et
e

W
al

th
am

 A
b

b
ey

H
ig

hb
rid

ge
 S

tr
ee

t
T

ow
n 

H
al

l t
o 

A
bb

ey
 V

ie
w

 r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t

£1
6,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 IN
IT

IA
T

IV
E

 //
 M

A
S

O
 (

M
aj

o
r 

p
at

ch
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e)

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£3

33
,3

33

W
al

th
am

 A
b

b
ey

W
al

to
n 

G
ar

de
ns

£2
5,

00
0

X
X

T
hi

s 
sc

he
m

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

os
tp

on
ed

 fo
r 

th
is

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
ye

ar
, s

o 
th

at
 m

in
or

 o
ve

rs
pe

nd
s 

on
 h

ig
he

r 
pr

io
rit

y 
sc

he
m

es
 c

an
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d.

 T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t w
ill

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 th

e 
20

11
/1

2 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

ks
 

B
u

ck
h

u
rs

t 
H

ill
P

al
ac

e 
G

ar
de

ns
T

hr
ou

gh
ou

t
£2

5,
00

0
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

N
az

ei
n

g
W

al
th

am
 R

oa
d

S
t L

eo
na

rd
's

 R
oa

d 
to

 L
au

nd
ry

 L
an

e
£6

5,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
L

o
u

g
h

to
n

W
es

tfi
el

d
T

hr
ou

gh
ou

t
£2

0,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
L

o
u

g
h

to
n

Y
or

k 
H

ill
A

12
1 

to
 S

ta
pl

es
 R

oa
d

£2
5,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

T
h

ey
d

o
n

 B
o

is
(L

ou
gh

to
n 

La
ne

) 
A

ve
nu

e 
of

 T
re

es
(L

ou
gh

to
n 

La
ne

/T
he

yd
on

 G
re

en
)

£2
9,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

T
h

ey
d

o
n

 B
o

is
F

or
es

t D
riv

e
T

hr
ou

gh
ou

t
£3

7,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
N

o
rt

h
 W

ea
ld

H
ar

lo
w

 C
om

m
on

M
11

 b
rid

ge
 to

 ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 L
on

do
n 

R
oa

d
£3

7,
50

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
N

o
rt

h
 W

ea
ld

H
as

tin
gw

oo
d 

R
oa

d
A

41
4 

to
 M

ill
 S

tr
ee

t
£4

2,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
C

h
ig

w
el

l
A

12
3 

F
en

ce
pi

ec
e 

R
oa

d
Ju

nc
tio

nw
ith

 M
an

or
 R

oa
d

£2
7,

50
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

S
 //

 R
O

A
D

S
B

U
D

G
E

T
: 

£1
,5

21
,1

47
L

o
u

g
h

to
n

O
ld

 S
ta

tio
n 

R
oa

d
W

ho
le

 le
ng

th
£5

5,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
T

ra
ps

 H
ill

 in
to

 C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

A
12

1 
to

 B
or

de
rs

 L
an

e
£9

5,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
O

n
g

ar
S

to
nd

on
 R

oa
d

A
12

8 
to

 ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 M
ill

 L
an

e
£6

0,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
O

n
g

ar
/B

o
b

b
in

g
w

o
r-

th
A

41
4 

E
pp

in
g 

R
oa

d
V

ar
io

us
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 T

al
bo

t P
H

 r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t t

o 
F

ou
r 

W
an

tz
 

ro
un

da
bo

ut
£6

5,
00

0
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 R

iv
er

s
E

pp
in

g 
R

oa
d

T
aw

ne
y 

C
om

m
on

 to
 T

oo
t H

ill
£1

20
,7

63
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

R
o

yd
o

n
D

ob
bs

 W
ei

r 
R

oa
d

S
ed

ge
 G

re
en

 to
 s

lu
ic

e 
ga

te
s 

£3
2,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

N
az

ei
n

g
H

oe
 L

an
e

V
ar

io
us

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
£6

5,
00

0
X

X
W

or
ks

 a
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 fo
r 

21
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
A

11
68

 C
hi

gw
el

l L
an

e
M

11
 n

or
th

bo
un

d 
of

f s
lip

 to
 L

U
L 

ov
er

 b
rid

ge
£1

25
,0

00
X

X
X

X
P

ar
t o

f i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 s

ch
em

e
N

o
rt

h
W

ea
ld

/M
ag

d
al

en
L

av
er

H
as

tin
gw

oo
d 

R
oa

d
M

ill
 S

tr
ee

t t
o 

T
ile

ga
te

 R
oa

d
£1

28
,0

00
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
A

12
1 

G
ol

di
ng

s 
H

ill
W

ak
e 

A
rm

s 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

 to
 8

00
m

 s
ou

th
 (

fo
re

st
 c

ar
 p

ar
k)

£1
34

,4
53

X
C

om
pl

et
e

S
C

H
E

M
E

/E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

S
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

P
A

R
IS

H
/W

A
R

D
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

/C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

Agenda Item 5

Page 23



E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

st
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
o

f 
w

o
rk

s 
20

10
/1

1

Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

S
C

H
E

M
E

/E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

S
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

P
A

R
IS

H
/W

A
R

D
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

/C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

A
b

b
es

s 
R

o
d

in
g

B
18

4 
D

un
m

ow
 R

oa
d

S
ch

oo
l L

an
e 

to
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 A

10
60

£2
25

,0
00

X
C

om
pl

et
e

E
p

p
in

g
 U

p
la

n
d

C
ar

te
rs

 L
an

e
W

ho
le

 le
ng

th
£2

0,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
H

ig
h

 O
n

g
ar

A
41

4 
C

he
lm

sf
or

d 
R

oa
d

F
ou

r 
W

an
tz

 R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t t

o 
La

dy
la

nd
s

£7
5,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

L
am

b
o

u
rn

e 
an

d
 

S
ta

p
le

fo
rd

 A
b

b
o

tt
s

A
11

3 
O

ng
ar

 R
oa

d
A

br
id

ge
 to

 P
as

si
ng

fo
rd

 B
rid

ge
 r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t
£9

0,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
N

o
rt

h
 W

ea
ld

S
ch

oo
l G

re
en

 L
an

e
W

ho
le

 le
ng

th
£4

2,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
N

o
rt

h
 W

ea
ld

A
41

4 
C

an
es

 L
an

e
H

ar
lo

w
 G

ar
de

n 
C

en
tr

e 
to

 R
ay

le
y 

La
ne

£5
5,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

N
o

rt
h

 W
ea

ld
U

pl
an

d 
R

oa
d

V
ar

io
us

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
£2

5,
43

2
X

C
om

pl
et

e
O

n
g

ar
B

18
4 

F
yf

ie
ld

 R
oa

d
A

41
4 

to
 3

0 
lim

it
£6

5,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
L

o
u

g
h

to
n

C
la

ys
 L

an
e

F
or

es
t s

ec
tio

n
£2

6,
00

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e
C

h
ig

w
el

l
A

12
3 

F
en

ce
pi

ec
e 

R
oa

d
M

ur
tw

el
l D

riv
e 

to
 E

C
C

 B
ou

nd
ar

y
£1

7,
50

0
X

C
om

pl
et

e

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 IN
IT

IA
T

IV
E

 //
 F

O
O

T
W

A
Y

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£1

03
,7

59
C

h
ig

w
el

l
M

ou
nt

 P
le

as
an

t R
oa

d
O

ut
er

 fo
ot

w
ay

£3
3,

50
0

X
X

C
om

pl
et

e
L

o
u

g
h

to
n

A
pp

le
to

n 
R

oa
d

T
hr

ou
gh

ou
t

£3
6,

70
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

W
al

th
am

 A
b

b
ey

H
ill

ho
us

e
S

ho
pp

in
g 

ar
ea

 to
 s

ch
oo

l
£9

,4
48

X
C

om
pl

et
e

B
u

ck
h

u
rs

t 
H

ill
W

es
tb

ur
y 

R
oa

d
P

al
m

er
st

on
 R

oa
d 

to
 S

co
tla

nd
 R

oa
d

£1
4,

11
1

X
C

om
pl

et
e

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
R

oo
kw

oo
d 

A
ve

nu
e

W
ill

in
ga

le
 R

oa
d 

to
 R

oo
kw

oo
d 

G
ar

de
ns

£1
0,

00
0

X
C

om
pl

et
e

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

S
 //

 F
O

O
T

W
A

Y
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
B

U
D

G
E

T
: 

£1
36

,4
85

E
p

p
in

g
C

ro
ss

in
g 

R
oa

d
B

ro
ok

 R
oa

d 
to

 A
lln

ut
ts

 R
oa

d
£1

9,
50

0
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

T
h

ey
d

o
n

 B
o

is
O

rc
ha

rd
 D

riv
e

B
17

2 
to

 T
he

 W
ei

nd
 (

E
as

te
rn

 s
id

e)
£3

2,
60

0
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

O
n

g
ar

Lo
ng

fie
ld

s
T

hr
ou

gh
ou

t (
ev

en
 n

um
be

r 
si

de
)

£3
2,

35
0

X
X

X
X

C
om

pl
et

e
O

n
g

ar
Q

ue
en

sw
ay

B
18

4 
to

 n
o 

84
 (

so
ut

h 
si

de
)

£3
3,

29
4

X
C

om
pl

et
e

W
al

th
am

 A
b

b
ey

P
at

er
no

st
er

 H
ill

62
 to

 7
6

£8
,9

00
X

C
om

pl
et

e
W

al
th

am
 A

b
b

ey
B

ro
ok

er
 R

oa
d

H
ar

ve
yf

ie
ld

s 
to

 C
ar

te
rs

fie
ld

 R
oa

d
£9

,8
41

X
C

om
pl

et
e

Page 24



E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

st
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
o

f 
w

o
rk

s 
20

10
/1

1

Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

S
C

H
E

M
E

/E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

S
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

P
A

R
IS

H
/W

A
R

D
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

/C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

S
A

F
E

R
 R

O
A

D
S

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 //

 C
L

U
S

T
E

R
 S

IT
E

S
 (

C
o

lli
si

o
n

 s
it

e 
re

m
ed

ia
ls

)
B

U
D

G
E

T
: 

£6
0,

00
0

N
o

rt
h

 W
ea

ld
 

B
as

se
tt

A
41

4 
C

an
es

 L
an

e
Ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 H

as
tin

gw
oo

d 
R

oa
d

£3
0,

00
0

X
X

C
om

pl
et

e
R

o
yd

o
n

C
om

m
on

 R
oa

d
Ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 E

pp
in

g 
R

oa
d,

 R
oy

do
n

£3
0,

00
0

X
X

C
om

pl
et

e

S
A

F
E

R
 R

O
A

D
S

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 //

 R
O

U
T

E
 S

T
U

D
IE

S
B

U
D

G
E

T
: 

£1
7,

37
2

A
b

ri
d

g
e

A
11

3
O

ng
ar

 to
 P

as
si

ng
fo

rd
 B

rid
ge

£1
7,

37
2

X
X

X
W

ill
  b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ar
ch

S
A

F
E

R
 R

O
A

D
S

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 //

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

 F
O

R
 S

P
E

E
D

 L
IM

IT
 R

E
V

IE
W

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£1

1,
50

0

C
A

R
R

Y
 O

V
E

R
 W

O
R

K
S

 -
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 //
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£1

0,
00

0
N

az
ei

n
g

 a
n

d
 

R
o

yd
o

n
P

os
iti

ve
 s

ig
na

ge
 s

ch
em

e,
 c

ar
ry

 o
ve

r 
fr

om
 2

00
9/

10
£1

0,
00

0
C

om
pl

et
e

P
U

B
L

IC
 R

IG
H

T
S

 O
F

 W
A

Y
B

U
D

G
E

T
: 

£5
0,

00
0

A
b

b
es

s,
B

ea
u

ch
am

p
 &

 
B

er
n

er
s 

R
o

d
in

g
 

B
yw

ay
 3

1
E

lm
 C

ot
ta

ge
 L

an
e

£5
0,

00
0

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed

P
A

S
S

E
N

G
E

R
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 //

 B
U

S
 IN

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

:
£1

02
,4

12

U
p

sh
ir

e/
W

al
th

am
A

b
b

ey
S

er
vi

ce
 2

51
U

ps
hi

re
 T

er
m

in
us

 a
nd

 o
ne

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 b

us
 s

to
p

£1
3,

00
0

X
X

X

S
om

e 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

t U
ps

hi
re

 
te

rm
in

us
 -

 r
ai

se
d 

ke
rb

s 
et

c.
  H

ow
ev

er
, O

ffi
ce

rs
 

ha
ve

 a
ls

o 
pu

t f
or

w
ar

d 
a 

sc
he

m
e 

br
ie

f f
or

 th
e 

ne
w

 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r,

 fo
r 

a 
w

id
en

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 a

t 
th

e 
st

op
 to

 a
llo

w
 tw

o 
bu

se
s 

to
 p

as
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

m
ou

nt
in

g 
th

e 
ke

rb
.  

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

cc
ep

te
d,

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

su
ffi

ci
en

t f
un

di
ng

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

te
am

 
ne

xt
 y

ea
r.

E
p

p
in

g
/N

o
rt

h
W

ea
ld

S
er

vi
ce

 5
9/

50
0

K
er

b 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t w
or

ks
£5

8,
00

0
X

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed
O

n
g

ar
B

us
 s

he
lte

r
£7

,0
00

X
X

X
E

p
p

in
g

2 
bu

s 
sh

el
te

rs
 -

 M
al

tin
gs

 L
an

e 
an

d 
P

al
m

er
s 

H
ill

£1
4,

00
0

X
X

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
T

or
rin

gt
on

 D
riv

e
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t w

or
ks

£7
,0

00
X

C
om

pl
et

ed
L

o
w

er
 S

h
ee

ri
n

g
S

he
lte

r 
ba

se
£2

,0
00

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
Je

ss
el

 D
riv

e 
an

d 
B

or
de

rs
 

La
ne

2 
sh

el
te

r 
ba

se
s

£4
,0

00
X

X
X

O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 g

ai
ni

ng
 fu

rt
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 L

ou
gh

to
n 

T
ow

n 
co

un
ci

l, 
w

ho
 a

re
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t 

st
at

s 
se

ar
ch

es
.

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
M

ar
le

sc
ro

ft 
W

ay
S

he
lte

r 
ba

se
£1

,0
00

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed

T
R

A
F

F
IC

 M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

Page 25



E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

st
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
o

f 
w

o
rk

s 
20

10
/1

1

Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

S
C

H
E

M
E

/E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

S
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

P
A

R
IS

H
/W

A
R

D
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

/C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

P
A

S
S

E
N

G
E

R
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

 IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 //

 S
A

F
E

R
 J

O
U

R
N

E
Y

S
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

L
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£9

,3
50

E
p

p
in

g
 U

p
la

n
d

E
pp

in
g 

U
pl

an
d 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

W
ai

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
£2

,3
00

X
X

O
bj

ec
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ec

ei
ve

d.
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

re
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 fi
na

lis
in

g 
th

e 
re

po
rt

 fo
r 

su
bm

is
si

on
 fo

r 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ec

is
io

n
W

al
th

am
 A

b
b

ey
H

ill
ho

us
e 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fo

ot
w

ay
 a

nd
 g

ua
rd

-r
ai

lin
gs

£1
,1

00
X

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

C
h

ip
p

in
g

 O
n

g
ar

C
hi

pp
in

g 
O

ng
ar

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

si
gn

s 
an

d 
lin

es
£3

,5
50

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed

C
h

ig
w

el
l

C
hi

gw
el

l P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

T
rim

m
in

g 
an

d 
lin

in
g

£1
,2

00
X

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

O
n

g
ar

S
he

lle
y 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

S
ig

ni
ng

 a
nd

 li
ni

ng
 w

or
ks

£1
,2

00
X

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 IN
IT

IA
T

IV
E

 F
U

N
D

 //
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£1

04
,5

00
S

ta
n

fo
rd

 R
iv

er
s

A
11

3
R

e-
op

en
in

g 
of

 la
y-

by
 b

y 
W

hi
te

 B
ea

r
£5

,0
00

X
X

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

W
al

th
am

 A
b

b
ey

H
on

ey
 L

an
e

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 V

eh
ic

le
 A

ct
iv

at
ed

 S
ig

n
£3

,5
00

X
X

In
iti

al
 lo

ca
tio

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 m
ee

t c
rit

er
ia

. A
n 

al
te

rt
at

iv
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 fo
un

d 
no

 th
e 

C
ro

ok
ed

 
M

ile
. O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
on

 
si

te
 b

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 M
ar

ch
.

T
h

ey
d

o
n

 B
o

is
Lo

ug
ht

on
 L

an
e

E
nh

an
ce

d 
si

gn
ag

e 
by

 S
co

ut
 H

ut
£1

,0
00

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

T
h

ey
d

o
n

 B
o

is
A

br
id

ge
 R

oa
d

N
ew

 a
nd

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
fo

ot
w

ay
 in

 A
br

id
ge

 R
oa

d 
fr

om
 v

ia
du

ct
 to

 
ce

m
et

er
y 

an
d 

W
oo

dl
an

d 
T

ru
st

 s
ite

£3
0,

00
0

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed
T

h
ey

d
o

n
 B

o
is

P
ie

rc
in

g 
H

ill
S

af
et

y 
bo

lla
rd

s 
an

d 
w

id
en

in
g 

of
 fo

ot
w

ay
 a

nd
 n

ew
 k

er
bi

ng
£1

5,
00

0
X

X
X

C
om

pl
et

ed
R

o
yd

o
n

H
am

le
tt 

H
ill

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 V

eh
ic

le
 A

ct
iv

at
ed

 S
ig

n
£4

,5
00

X
C

om
pl

et
ed

N
o

rt
h

 W
ea

ld
 

B
as

se
tt

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d

Z
eb

ra
 c

ro
ss

in
g

£4
0,

00
0

X
X

T
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
P

an
el

, 
re

qu
ire

s 
w

or
ks

 w
hi

ch
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
bu

dg
et

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
.

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
06

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

L
o

u
g

h
to

n

A
11

68
 C

hi
gw

el
l 

La
ne

/L
an

gs
to

n
R

oa
d/

O
ak

w
oo

d 
H

ill

T
he

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t w

or
ks

 b
ei

ng
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
t t

hi
s 

ju
nc

tio
n 

to
: 

Im
pr

ov
e 

tr
af

fic
 c

ap
ac

ity
 a

t t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

by
 u

pd
at

in
g 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

tr
af

fic
 s

ig
na

l i
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 
le

ng
th

 o
f r

ig
ht

 tu
rn

 la
ne

 fo
r 

tr
af

fic
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 L
an

gs
to

n 
R

oa
d;

 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 r

ig
ht

 tu
rn

in
g 

la
ne

s;
 Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

X
X

X
X

C
om

pl
et

e

C
h

ig
w

el
l a

n
d

 
L

o
u

g
h

to
n

R
ec

to
ry

 L
an

e 
an

d 
C

hi
gw

el
l 

La
ne

R
oa

d 
cl

os
ur

e 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
yc

le
w

ay
X

X
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e.

 T
ra

ffi
c 

re
gu

la
tio

n 
or

de
r,

 s
ig

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
lin

in
g 

w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 th

e 
cy

cl
e 

tr
ac

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 2

01
1/

12

L
O

C
A

L
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 P

A
N

E
L

 S
C

H
E

M
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

: 
£4

0,
00

0

C
h

ig
w

el
l

M
an

or
 R

oa
d

Z
eb

ra
 c

ro
ss

in
g

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
T

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
to

 r
eq

ue
st

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ov

er
 to

 2
01

1/
12

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
ag

re
ed

. S
ub

se
qu

en
tly

, o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
re

 
lia

is
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l C

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
ab

ou
t a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
op

tio
ns

.

Page 26



E
p

p
in

g
 F

o
re

st
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
o

f 
w

o
rk

s 
20

10
/1

1

Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

S
C

H
E

M
E

/E
X

T
E

N
T

 O
F

 W
O

R
K

S
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

P
A

R
IS

H
/W

A
R

D
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

IN
D

IC
A

T
IV

E
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

P
R

O
G

R
E

S
S

/C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

L
O

C
A

L
L

Y
 D

E
T

E
R

M
IN

E
D

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 B

U
D

G
E

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
: 

 £
15

8,
77

5
(£

12
9,

27
5

p
lu

s 
£2

9,
50

0)
D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
id

e
D

is
tr

ic
t w

id
e

H
ig

hw
ay

 R
an

ge
rs

£6
6,

07
5

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

id
e

D
is

tr
ic

t w
id

e
D

is
ab

le
d 

ba
ys

£2
,0

00
D

is
tr

ic
t 

w
id

e
D

is
tr

ic
t w

id
e

A
dh

oc
 s

ig
ns

 a
nd

 li
ne

s
£2

,0
00

C
om

pl
et

e
A

b
ri

d
g

e
Lo

nd
on

 R
oa

d
N

ew
 4

0m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it

£3
,7

00
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

id
e

D
is

tr
ic

t w
id

e

A
m

en
dm

en
t 6

, B
at

ch
 1

10
0;

 D
is

tr
ic

t w
id

e 
di

sa
bl

ed
 b

ay
s 

– 
in

te
nt

io
n 

no
tic

es
 a

lre
ad

y 
ad

ve
rt

is
ed

£5
,5

00
X

X
C

om
pl

et
e

D
is

tr
ic

t 
w

id
e

D
is

tr
ic

t w
id

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

 u
pd

at
es

 a
nd

 o
m

is
si

on
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
di

sa
bl

ed
 b

ay
s 

no
t y

et
 a

dv
er

tis
ed

£2
8,

00
0

X
X

T
he

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
D

ec
is

io
n 

ha
s 

no
w

 b
ee

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 w
ill

 n
ow

 li
ai

se
 w

ith
 C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
 to

 a
gr

ee
 a

 
st

ar
t d

at
e 

on
 s

ite
.

N
o

rt
h

 W
ea

ld
 

B
as

se
tt

/M
at

ch
in

g

H
as

tin
gw

oo
d 

R
oa

d,
 M

ill
 

S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 H

ar
lo

w
 

C
om

m
on

N
ew

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it

£6
,0

00
X

C
om

pl
et

e

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
D

eb
de

n 
La

ne
30

m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it

£3
,5

00
X

X
T

he
 s

ch
em

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

ub
m

itt
ed

 fo
r 

fo
rm

al
 

ad
ve

rt
is

in
g

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
T

ra
ps

 H
ill

W
ai

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
£2

,0
00

X
C

om
pl

et
e

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 -
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

ch
em

es
 w

er
e 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
io

n
 b

y 
th

e 
L

H
P

 o
n

 2
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

to
 u

ti
lis

e 
£4

0,
00

0
C

h
ig

w
el

l
M

ou
nt

 P
le

as
an

t R
oa

d
F

oo
tw

ay
 r

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
£1

1,
01

7
X

E
p

p
in

g
H

ob
bs

 C
ro

ss
 R

oa
d

R
oa

d 
su

rf
ac

in
g

£6
,2

23
X

C
h

ig
w

el
l

Li
m

es
 A

ve
nu

e
R

oa
d 

su
rf

ac
in

g
£5

,1
70

X
N

o
rt

h
 W

ea
ld

 B
as

se
tH

ow
s 

M
ea

d
F

oo
tw

ay
 r

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
£1

0,
34

0
X

O
n

g
ar

Q
ue

en
sw

ay
F

oo
tw

ay
 r

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
£5

,1
70

X

L
O

C
A

L
 H

IG
H

W
A

Y
 P

A
N

E
L

 -
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



DISTRICT OF EPPING FOREST 
LOCAL HIGHWAY PANEL – MARCH 2011 

REPORT BY: LOCALISM AND CUSTOMER SERVICES TEAM 
ESSEX COUNTY COUNCIL 

2011/12 Programme of works 

Purpose of report 
  To provide Members with a report on Highway issues within Epping Forest District. 
  To provide sufficient information on schemes so that decisions on local priorities can be made. 
  Members are invited to offer suggestions and requests for future works. 

Background
At the last meeting of the Panel, Members were requested to feed back comments on the traffic 
improvement proposals presented. The responses are shown within Appendix A.  

The budget allocations for the 2011/12 financial year have not yet been disclosed. 

Future Schemes 

Maintenance 
The Officers’ provisional programme for maintenance in the District has been amended since the last 
meeting of the Panel, following recent changes in terms of the target levels for different maintenance 
methods, and it currently stands as follows: 

    
Works 
Budget

Carriageway Resurfacing  £732,637.00 Location 
Newmans Lane, Loughton   £49,487.00 All 
St Johns Road, Epping   £20,680.00 Bodleys to High Street 
Forest Rd, Loughton     £20,680.00 Smarts Lane to 186a 
B175 Stapleford Rd, Stapleford Abbotts £75,200.00 Passingford Roundabout to Rabbitts PH 
Theydon Road / Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois £8,272.00 50-100m section north of Little Gregories Lane 

The Lindens (49-114), Loughton   £25,380.00 49-114 
B184 Fyfield Road, Ongar   £30,080.00 Adjacent to Fyfield Business Park 
Sheering Lower Rd, Sheering   £80,252.00 Back Lane to Sawbridgeworth Road 
Avey Lane, Waltham Abbey    £20,680.00 310m from A112 
A104 Epping New Road, Loughton £84,073.00 Earls Path to Manor Road 
Woodbury Hill, Loughton (3m wide) £25,380.00 York Hill to Woodbury House 

Page 29



Queens Rd, Buckhurst Hill   £27,393.00 Buckhurst Tavern to High Road 
Stanwyck Drive, Chigwell   £15,040.00 All 
Earls Path, Loughton from A104   £73,320.00 All 
Sawbridgeworth Road, Hatfield Heath £31,020.00   
Green Man Road, Matching   £45,120.00   
Mount Road, Theydon Mount (M11 to M25) £68,620.00   
Upshire Rd, W/Abbey     £31,960.00   
      
Carriageway Surface Dressing1  £478,700.00  
Foster Street, Hastingwood   £36,754.00 M11 to Burr Farm 
Fern Hall Lane, Waltham Abbey   £15,040.00 Steeper gradient section 
Long Street, Waltham Abbey   £15,040.00 Steeper gradient section 
Moor Hall Road, Matching Tye   £18,330.00 Harlow Boundary to M11 
Moreton Road, Fyfield     £17,296.00 Scott Farm to Penny’s farm 
Motts Lane, Waltham Abbey   £40,420.00 All 
Upland Road, Epping Upland   £53,580.00 Takeley Farm to Currance Lodge 
Blake Hall Road, Greensted Green £13,630.00 Railway to Toot Hill Road 
Fyfield Road, Moreton     £51,470.00 All 
A104 Epping New Road, Loughton £125,020.00 A121 to Earls Path 
Wind Hill, Moreton     £10,340.00 Whites Farm to Bushes Farm 
Fyfield Road, Willingale   £25,380.00 All 
Hook Lane, Stapleford Abbotts  £56,400.00  
      
Microsurfacing2   £159,442.80  
Toot Hill Road, Toot Hill   £82,720.00 School Lane to village sign 
Boars Head Rd, Hobbs Cross   £45,120.00 Burr Farm to Hobbs Cross 
Walker Avenue, Fyfield   £25,380.00 All 
       
Retread3    £48,743.00  
Woodreddon Farm Lane, W/Abbey £29,473.00 Woodredon Farm to Woodridden Hill 
Hawes Lane, W/Abbey   £19,270.00 All 
      

                                                     
1 Bitumen, usually in the form of an emulsion, is sprayed onto the road surface at an appropriate rate from the 
spray bar at the rear of a large tanker containing the bitumen emulsion. Chippings of an appropriate size, largely 
dependent upon the hardness of the road and traffic conditions, are immediately applied to the bitumen by a 
large spreader that usually tows behind it a lorry containing the chippings. Surface dressing will not add any 
strength to the road pavement, but it does keep an already strong road in a strong condition for longer by sealing 
water out.
2 A form of road or footway maintenance; Microsurfacing is a cold mixed asphalt. It consists of a graded 
aggregate, a binder, fines and additives. It is a hardwearing surfacing for pavement preservation and 
rehabilitation. It is similar to slurry surfacing but is specialized for situations where very quick trafficking, rut filling 
or extreme conditions of heat or cold are likely. 
3 A form of road maintenance; Heavy machinery is used to pulverise the top surface of the road and mixed with a 
hydraulic binder or bitumen emulsion. Some excess material is removed before bitumen and cement is added 
for a conventional hot mix bituminous wearing course. 

Page 30



Joint Repairs4   £21,714.00  
Green Glade, Theydon Bois   £10,340.00 All 
Spring Grove, Loughton Hill   £6,204.00 All 
      
Footway Refurbishment  £245,297.00  
Longfields, Ongar   £27,441.00  
Kings Avenue, Buckhurst Hill  £44,180.00  
Oak Lodge Avenue, Chigwell  £74,976.00  
A414, High Ongar (King St to Norton Heath) £44,180.00  
Alderwood Drive, Abridge (Lambourne Parish) £54,520.00  
      
Footway Slurry Sealing  £73,984.00  
Hyde Mead, Nazeing   £15,241.00  
Pound Close, Nazeing  £10,340.00  
Parkside, Matching Tye  £10,340.00  
Green Glade, Theydon Bois  £10,340.00  
Pakes Way, Theydon Bois   £10,340.00  

Traffic Improvements 
We have not received confirmation of the schemes to be delivered by Capital funding, within the 
District in terms of traffic improvements. This can be distributed to the members, once received. 

Localism

Rangers
Looking at the provision of the Highway Rangers service in EFDC for the coming year, early 
indications are that the level of funding available will be similar to 2010/11, i.e. approximately 
£130,000. 

The Cabinet Members has indicated that some flexibility existing within this budget to determine minor 
traffic type schemes but it is his desire to also provide a visible level of Ranger type work. 

Last year, Rangers works were provided for about 8 months. This would leave a sum available for the 
Panel of around £43,000. 

                                                     
4 A form of road maintenance pertaining to concrete roads only; Concrete roads are constructed with joints 
between large sections to enable movement, contraction and expansion. This form of maintenance will 
concentrate on the repairing of these joints. 

Page 31



Traffic Improvements 
At the last meeting of the Panel, Members were requested to submit their top three priorities in terms 
of traffic improvements. Nineteen responses were received from Members and Parishes. They are 
summarised below and each suggestion is presented in further detail in the attached pages. 

Any speed limit requests are now being logged and assessed under the Speed Management Strategy 
review discussed at a previous meeting of the Panel. 

Members may wish to consider how these suggestions are progressed. Members may not wish to 
pursue a suggestion if it is not perceived viable at this stage. They may wish to allocate funding for 
investigation work on a particular scheme if the Local Highway Budget permits, lobby the Council for 
those schemes of a substantial nature or instruct ECC to carry out some informal consultation to gain 
a true view from local residents on a particular scheme. 

Page 32



H
ig

h
w

ay 
R

ef

Parish/Ward Location Description 
V

o
tin

g
 

referen
ce

V
o

tin
g

 
referen

ce

V
o

tin
g

 
referen

ce

N
u

m
b

er o
f 

tim
es 

req
u

ested
 

86 Abridge Abridge Road Priority working over bridge 04     1 
33 Abridge Market Place Junction improvements 15     1 

117 Buckhurst Hill 
Farm Way/Forest 
Edge/Station Way 

Traffic calming on Station 
Way/Farm Way, junction 
warning signs or VASs 01     1 

99 Buckhurst Hill Brook Road 
Pedestrian facilities at signal 
junction 01     1 

62 Buckhurst Hill Roding Lane 
Pedestrian facilities at signal 
junction 01     1 

8 Buckhurst Hill Brook Road Creation of footpath 09     1 

55 Chigwell 
B173 Manor Road E of 
Tomswood Road Signal controlled crossing 02     1 

32 Chigwell 
Manor Road j/w Vicarage 
Lane Junction improvement 02     1 

53 Chigwell 
B173 Manor Road j/w 
Stanwyck Road 

Junction 
improvement/pedestrian refuge 02     1 

New High Ongar 
A414 junction with 
Rookery Road 

A dedicated right turn lane at 
the junction 03     1 

New High Ongar   Parish gateway signs 03     1 
23 Lambourne Ongar Road Vehicle activated sign 04     1 

New Lambourne Manor Road Slow signs 04     1 
74-
78 Loughton Various locations Dropped kerbs 05     1 

4 Loughton 
Oakwood Hill j/w Chigwell 
Lane 

Additional lining, bollards and 
additional planting 05 07 08 3 

66 Loughton Alderton Hill Pedestrian refuge 05 06   2 

60 Loughton 
Church Hill (near the 
Uplands) Signal controlled crossing 06 07 08 3 

3 Loughton Chester Road 
Chicanes and pedestrian 
crossings 07 08 15 3 

5 Loughton 
Loughton High Road j/w 
The Drive 

Removal of traffic lights and re-
direction of traffic 15     1 

17 Nazeing St Leonard's Road 
Village Gateway and 
repositioning of VAS 09     1 

106 North Weald 
Woodside junction High 
Road 

An island at the junction of 
Woodside and NM High Road 10     1 

108 North Weald Woodside – Thornwood Weight restriction 10     1 

104 North Weald 
Wellington Road and 
Hampden Close 

Traffic calming and parking 
restrictions 10     1 

New Ongar Fyfield Road Vehicle activated sign 11     1 

118 Roydon 
Church Mead junction with 
High Street Junction protection 12     1 

New
Waltham 
Abbey Fountain Place Car parking/obstruction issues 13   1 

Page 33



Abridge 

Abridge, Abridge Road Priority working over 
bridge

Indicative costs: 
£3,500 

Highway reference: 86 Voting reference: 04 
The current width at the centre of the bridge can allow two cars to pass closely, with due driver care. 
However, not so if one vehicle happens to be a larger vehicle. Currently, in these situations vehicles 
will give way to oncoming traffic, as determined by driver behaviour. 

If priority working was to be installed at this location, priority would be for the vehicles exiting Abridge 
and therefore consideration would need to be given to the congestion which may occur at peak times, 
on the route into Abridge. Additionally, there are concerns with regards to forward visibility and the 
siting of statutory signs required for a priority working, as members will see from the photo below. (For 
example, the sign would need to be placed adjacent to the give way markings. Entering the village, 
this would currently be difficult to place in conjunction with existing speed limit signs, which indicate 
the exact location of where the speed limit starts. Exiting the village, if the sign were to be sited by the 
bridge, this may affect the structure of the bridge due to the signs’ foundations. If the sign was to be 
placed further towards the junction, there is an increased likelihood that this will be repeatedly struck 
or missed by the drivers manoeuvring the junction.) 

A volume survey would give a good indication of the level of traffic that passes this place and what 
impact this suggestion would have on traffic flow. This would cost in the region of £1000. 

Page 34



Market Place, Abridge Junction 
improvements 

Indicative costs: 
£20,000 

Highway reference: 33 Voting reference: 15 
Possible junction improvements could include signalising the junction. However this would not be 
feasible here in terms of the volume of traffic and the costs associated with such a scheme. Plus, the 
siting of the equipment would be very difficult given the existing site constraints. 

Manoeuvring of the junction is the main cause of concern at this location. It is not possible to make 
changes to the layout of the junction due to the site constraints. However, some improvement could be 
brought about through resurfacing and relining of the junction, in addition to attending to the kerbs at the 
junction, which are currently being over-run, and raising these to deter drivers from cutting the corners. 

Page 35



Buckhurst Hill 

Farm Way/Forest Edge/Station Way, 
Buckhurst Hill 

Traffic calming on 
Station Way/Farm 
Way, junction warning 
signs or VASs 

Indicative costs:  
Traffic calming: £30-
40,000 

Highway reference: 117 Voting reference: 01 
Speed data (2009) 
Farm Way NW bound: 85th percentile: 33.6mph; SE bound: 85th percentile: 33.8mph 
Forest Edge NE bound: 85th percentile: 30.2mph; SW bound: 85th percentile: 29.5mph 
Station Way NE bound: 85th percentile: 27.3mph; SW bound: 85th percentile: 26.1mph 
A request has been received here, as it is felt that there is nothing that ever gets done here and that 
accidents demolishing walls occur on a regular basis and there have been a number of collisions/near 
misses. The request states that the traffic travels too fast on Station Way/Farm Way and there are 
bends which make it difficult to see if the road is clear to cross or enter from Forest Edge. Traffic 
calming is requested or at least warning signs or reduced speed limits or VASs. Drivers on the road 
think they have a clear run and aren’t prepared for the quite busy section. 

The existing speed limit is 30mph and thus reducing this further is not an option. Speeding can be 
addressed through Police enforcement. 

This location has been the focus of two separate collision site reviews in recent years, the outcome of 
which brought about improvements in signage and lining. Warning signs are sufficient for the location. 

In terms of the suggestions for traffic calming, a raised junction would need to be accompanied by 
associated traffic calming speed humps/cushions. However finding suitable locations in Farm Way to 
implement humps/cushions would be difficult due to the proliferation of vehicle crossovers. In addition, 
a consultation would need to be undertaken with residents in the area and their support for the 
proposal would need to be considered. It would take approximately 18 months to implement. In 
addition, such calming would only be taken up to the Essex County boundary, at the most. To gain 
public perception on traffic calming proposals, an informal consultation can be undertaken. 

Officers have applied for a ‘Stop’ sign at this junction to the Department for Transport (DfT) on Forest 
Edge at the location shown in the photo, as this was the approach that accident statistics indicated 
was the arm that required treatment. DfT however, refused the application as they deemed the 
proposal did not meet criteria for a ‘Stop’ sign. 

Page 36



Vehicle activated signs could be considered. However, this cannot be pursued as the recorded speeds 
are below the required ECC criteria. 

Page 37



Brook Road junction with Epping New Road, 
Buckhurst Hill 

Pedestrian facility at 
signal junction 

Indicative costs:  
Investigation: £15,000 
Crossing: £120,000 

Highway reference: 99 Voting reference: 01 
Speed data (2010) 
Epping New Road: NE Channel: 85th percentile: 36.4mph (2010) 
Epping New Road: SW Channel: 85th percentile: 39.9mph (2010) 
Brook Road: NE bound: 85th percentile: 33.7mph (2008) 
Brook Road: SW bound: 85th percentile: 33.4mph (2008)
Schools are located along High Road and in order for parents to access these from Brook Road and 
Epping New Road they are required to cross Church Road. 

The junction is already signalised and thus, pedestrian phasing would be required at a cost of 
approximately £120,000. These costs would need to be met by a capital budget. 

A feasibility study however, would need to be carried out. This would cost £15,000. This survey would 
include a vehicle capacity survey, designs and assessment of the designs in terms of the implications on 
the network and capacity of the junction and a topographical survey. 

Page 38



Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill Pedestrian facilities at 
signal junction 

Indicative costs:  
Investigation £15,000 
Crossing: £120,000 

Highway reference: 62 Voting reference: 01 
Accident data 
Speed data 
It is not considered entirely necessary that a crossing is installed at this location, as a facility already 
exists on the desire line. However, pedestrians to the east of Loughton Way are still required to cross 
Loughton Way to reach the existing pedestrian crossing. It is therefore suggested that pedestrian 
facilities are considered as part of the signal controlled junction on Loughton Way and Roding Lane. 
However a feasibility study would need to be undertaken and consideration given to the whole junction 
in terms of installing a signalised pedestrian crossing facility. This would cost £15,000. This survey 
would include a vehicle capacity survey, designs and assessment of the designs in terms of the 
implications on the network and capacity of the junction and a topographical survey. 

A signalised crossing would cost approximately £120,000. These costs would need to be met by a 
capital budget. 

Page 39



Brook Road, Buckhurst Hill Creation of footpath Indicative costs: £25-
50,000 

Highway reference: 8 Voting reference: 09 
A request has been received to create a footpath at the Buckhurst Hill end of Brook Road to join up 
with existing footpath at the Waltham Forest end. Brook Road runs between Epping new Road and 
Whitehall Road, where there is a bus stop and Bancroft's school is within walking distance. 

The scheme may require moving a ditch or building a raised path over the ditch. 

Local residents have made representations to local Councillors, supported by Cllr Ann Haigh and Cllr 
Jill Sutcliffe, Chairman Joyce Darby and Cllr Angela Cass. 

The land is the property of the Corporation of London. A possible ‘way-leave’ will be required to create 
the footpath. Officers have been given the ‘in principle’ agreement from the Corporation of London. 
Neither the CoL nor the Officers have any adverse comments about the proposal. 

Once a design had been completed, this would have to be submitted to the Corporation of London for 
approval and the progression of the scheme would be dependent on their consent. 

Page 40



Chigwell 

B173 Manor Road E of Tomswood Road, 
Chigwell 

Signal controlled 
crossing 

Indicative costs:  

Highway reference: 55 Voting reference: 02 
Accident data: 
3 serious 
5 slight
Speed data (2010) 
Manor Road: NE bound: 85th percentile: 35.6mph 
Manor Road: SW bound: 85th percentile: 34.8mph 
A separate report is provided to the Panel. 

Page 41



Manor Road junction with Vicarage Lane, 
Chigwell 

Junction improvement Indicative costs:  
Mini: £40,000 
Realignment: £40,000 

Highway reference: 32 Voting reference: 02 
Accident data 
3 slight 
Speed data (2009) 
Vicarage Lane: NW bound: 85th percentile: 42.0mph 
Vicarage lane: SE bound: 85th percentile: 43.4mph 
The main cause of concern at this location is the tight turning manoeuvres required when travelling 
from Manor Road and turning right into Vicarage Lane. Additionally, when turning out of Vicarage 
Lane, there is limited visibility from the right, due to the boundary of the property at the junction. 

A possible solution would be to remove the existing island and install a mini-roundabout. However, it 
can be seen from the photo below that there is an existing BT chamber within the island. This and the 
extent of other utilities apparatus and equipment present within the soft area need to be investigated, 
as this will have implications on the costs of such a scheme. Services, such as cables, within soft 
areas tend to be relatively shallow, but those under a road construction need to be much lower. This is 
the reason that this needs to be investigated. In some instances, the lowering of existing services has 
made a scheme prohibitive. A suggestion for members to consider would be to undertake this 
investigation (i.e. digging trial holes) and the design work in the first year, at a cost of approximately 
£2,000. Then follow this with the construction on site in the following year. 

An alternative option would be to consider changing the alignment of the junction and altering the 
channel of flow of traffic. A drawing is attached. Again, this will be reliant on sufficient depth of the 
existing services and the suggestion above, to carry out the scheme in two parts is recommended 
here.

Page 42



Page 43



B173 Manor Road junction with Stanwyck 
Road, Chigwell 

Junction 
improvement/pedestrian 
refuge

Indicative costs:  

Highway reference: 53 Voting reference: 02 
Speed data (2010) 
Manor Road: NE bound: 85th percentile: 35.6mph 
Manor Road: SW bound: 85th percentile: 34.8mph
To install a pedestrian refuge, a minimum road width of 7.5m is required. The current road width at this 
location is 6.5m and thus a refuge cannot be accommodated here. In addition to this, it has been 
observed that siting a refuge will be difficult in light of the number of vehicle crossovers, which prohibit 
a safe location for such a crossing. 

In terms of junction improvements, there are no perceived engineering solutions which could bring 
about any safety improvements at this location. 

Page 44



High Ongar 

A414 junction with Rookery Road, High 
Ongar 

A dedicated right turn 
lane at the junction 

Indicative costs:  

Highway reference: New Voting reference: 03 
There is currently an informal turning lane, which enables drivers to manoeuvre to the right of the lane. 

There is insufficient width at this location to provide a dedicated right turn lane. 

Drivers, who wish to turn at this location do not cause major implications or congestion on the network 
at this point. 

Page 45



The Street, High Ongar (entering from the 
East) 

Parish gateway signs Indicative costs: 
£15,000 

Highway reference: New Voting reference: 03 
Speed data 
NE Bound: 85th percentile: 39.0mph 
SW Bound: 85th percentile: 38.1mph 
A request has been received from the Parish for gateway signs entering the village from the East. 

There are two possible sites for consideration., the first being at the location in the first photo. It can be 
seen that the verges here are narrow, but a bespoke design displaying the Village name could be 
accommodated here. 

Another location for consideration would be at the start of the speed limit within the village, shown in 
the second photo below. However, the gateway features cannot be accommodated here. 

Page 46



Lambourne 

Ongar Road, Lambourne Vehicle activated sign Indicative costs: 
£9,000 

Highway reference: 23 Voting reference: 04 
A request has been received requesting, the speed limit along Ongar Road be reduced from 60mph to 
30mph outside the village hall. There are currently signs located here to warn traffic of the reduction in 
speed limit. However as these signs are placed along the roadside where there is foliage and trees, 
these signs are often obscured by overgrown trees.  

The newly introduced children's playground on Ongar Road at the Abridge Village Hall is within the 
30mph speed limit zone and due to the presence of children in this locality it is now more imperative 
for drivers to be aware that they must reduce their speed to 30mph at the village gateway. The current 
signs are often obscured by trees, which are the responsibility of the residents, and so are sometimes 
obscured for a length of time before they are cut back. 

A VAS would ensure that the traffic is aware of the reduction in speed. The wall at the entrance to the 
village hall has been knocked down twice and the house opposite has also had its wall knocked down 
at least three times. 

The appropriate location for a vehicle activated sign would need to be sought. A speed survey will 
determine the most suitable location as determined by the ECC policy, and then consideration would 
need to be given as to the accommodation of the sign on site. 

Page 47



Manor Road, Lambourne Slow signs Indicative costs:  
Highway reference: New Voting reference: 04 
Speed data (2008) 
SW Bound: 85th percentile: 45.2mph 
NE Bound: 85th percentile: 44.9mph 
Slow signs must be associated with a warning sign (e.g., bend), in locations where the driver is 
required to slow down. 

Slow signs are already in place at appropriate locations along this route and therefore Officers 
recommend that no further action be taken with regards to additional slow signage. 

Page 48



Loughton 

Various locations, Loughton Dropped kerbs Indicative costs: 
£5,000 

Highway reference: 74-78 Voting reference: 05 
A request has been received and is in response to concerns of elderly local residents walking from 
Barrington Road, Loughton to the Health Surgery in Pyrles Lane.  

The list is as follows: 
Barrington Road at its junction with Doubleday Road x 2 
Sandford Avenue at its junction with Westall Road x 2 
Colebrook Lane at its junction with Westall Road x 2 (one of these on 'south' side of Westall Road) 
Harvey Gardens at its junction with Colebrook Lane x 2 
Conveyers Way at its junction with Colebrook Lane x 2 

Locations are shown on the sketch attached. 

Page 49



Page 50



Oakwood Hill junction with Chigwell Lane, 
Loughton 

Additional lining, 
bollards and additional 
planting 

Indicative costs:  
Restriction: £12,000 
Bollards (dependent 
on extent): £20,000 

Highway reference: 4 Voting reference: 05, 07, 08 
A request has been received for the restoration and protection of the grass verge in Oakwood Hill from 
the junction with Chigwell Lane adjacent to the Roding Valley Nature Reserve on one side and the 
Oakwood Hill Industrial Estate on the other to create a 'gateway' entrance into this part of Loughton. 

Suggested solutions include parking restrictions (double yellow lines), installation of timber bollards, 
and additional planting, tress and bulbs to create an attractive 'avenue' similar to the Remembrance 
Avenue in Colchester approached from the A12.  

The grass verge adjacent to the Nature Reserve is used for commuter parking from Debden station. 
The verge permanently shows the impact of vehicles and deposits of mud on the road. As parts of the 
verge become impassable, vehicles park further from the junction, extending the problem. The 
introduction of the Debden parking scheme, following the recent review, is likely to exacerbate the 
problem, to the detriment of the area. 

The scheme is supported by the residents and town councillors.  

Any restrictions that will be put in place here will require vehicles to park elsewhere. This will inevitably 
displace 20 or so vehicles, which may park further to Marlescroft Way. This will need to be considered 
before any decision on placing parking restrictions at this location. 

A formal consultation will need to be undertaken as part of the legal process in developing a traffic 
regulation order, and it must be borne in mind that the commuters who currently park here may object 
to the proposal. 

The planting suggestions,is not one that ECC can include within this scheme, however the installation 
of bollards may prevent footway/verge parking and may be sufficient without the need for additional 
waiting restrictions. 

Page 51



Page 52



Alderton Hill, Loughton Pedestrian refuge Indicative costs: 
£15,000 

Highway reference: 66 Voting reference: 05, 06 
Accident data 
2 Serious 
3 Slight 
Due to the low traffic levels and speeds at this location, it is suggested that a pedestrian refuge will 
suffice here. However, this will be subject to sufficient road width and visibility. Additionally, finding a 
suitable location due to the proliferation of vehicle crossovers may hinder this project. Taking this into 
account, placing a refuge here will reduce the distance pedestrians from Alderton Hill will have to walk 
to reach the school. The proximity of the school means that there is a higher than average proportion 
of vulnerable pedestrians crossing the road. 

Page 53



Church Hill (near the Uplands), Loughton Signal controlled 
crossing

Indicative costs:  
Signal crossing: 
£150,000 
Zebra: £40,000 
Investigation: £5,000 

Highway reference: 60 Voting reference: 06, 07, 08 
The number of pedestrians who cross Church Hill is relatively high and flow remains consistent 
throughout the day. Similarly, the traffic flows remain high. It is therefore considered that a signal 
controlled crossing should be installed at the location of, or in the vicinity of, the existing pedestrian 
refuge. However, it must be borne in mind that this may affect the Traps Hill junction. This would need 
to be capitally funded. 

A zebra crossing could be considered at this location, but may not be appropriate. The appropriateness 
of such a crossing would be determined by a pedestrian and vehicular survey, speed survey and safety 
audit. 

There are some initial concerns that these proposals may not be possible be to accommodated within 
the exiting footway widths. This will be identified through any studies which are undertaken. 

Page 54



Chester Road, Loughton Chicanes and 
pedestrian crossings 

Indicative costs:  
Chicanes: £ 60,000 
Cushions: £40,000 

Highway reference: 3 Voting reference: 07, 08, 15 
A request has been received for speed reduction measures in Chester Road, to include the installation 
of chicanes and a pedestrian crossing.  

The current speed limit is 30mph. 

The applicant states that there is a history of a serious accident involving a child. A petition has been 
organized by residents and there have been reports of speeding traffic, including buses, on this 
section of Chester Road, despite the existing speed humps. The width of the road encourages 
vehicles to increase speed. Police have undertaken speed camera checks.  Initial suggestions of the 
installation of a VAS or SID were not thought to be sufficiently effective in this location. The use of 
Chicanes as in Willingale Road appears to be a more effective way of calming traffic. Support from 
local residents and Town Councillors has been given. 

It may be possible to achieve chicanes, however a detailed survey will need to be undertaken to find 
suitable locations given the presence of vehicle crossovers and junctions. 

It must also be borne in mind that chicanes, in some cases, increase speeds, as vehicles try to ‘beat’ 
the oncoming traffic to the chicane. 

An alternative consideration would be to consider extending the existing traffic calming cushions 
further towards Davenant’s Foundation School. A consultation process would need to be undertaken, 
and the views of residents must be considered. 

Page 55



High Road junction with The Drive Removal of traffic lights 
and redirection of traffic 

Indicative costs:  
£60,000 

Highway reference: 5 Voting reference: 15 
Speed data (2010) 
NE Bound: 85th percentile: 35.7mph 
SW Bound: 85th percentile: 34.5mph 
A request has been received to make improvements to the traffic lights on the junction of Loughton High 
Road with Brooklyn Avenue/The Drive, including the removal of the additional phase of the traffic lights 
that controls the egress of vehicles from Brooklyn Parade into Brooklyn Avenue, which causes 
unnecessary congestion into the High Road and The Drive. 

All vehicles exiting from Brooklyn Parade should be required to turn left into Brooklyn Avenue. 

This will improve highway safety, reduce congestion and is supported by the Town Council. 

This project was part of a 2008/2009 'Congestion Busting' scheme, which was widely unsupported by 
various groups because of the proposal to remove parking. 

Officers have concerns about introducing a 'left turn only' from Brooklyn Parade, as this may cause 
dangerous manoeuvres. 

Officers suggest an investigation is carried out on the timings of the lights at peak hours to reduce the 
use of Brooklyn Parade. Until further investigations are carried out it is difficult for Officers to put forward 
proposals that differ significantly from the 'Congestion busting' scheme proposed in 2008/9. 

Page 56



Page 57



Nazeing 

St Leonard’s Road, Nazeing Village gateway and 
repositioning of VAS 

Indicative costs: 
£15,000 

Highway reference: 17 Voting reference: 09 
Speed data (2010) 
South Hyde Mead: N bound: 85th percentile: 30.36mph 
South Hyde Mead: S bound: 85th percentile: 32.1mph 
South Tatsfield: NE bound: 85th percentile: 35.6mph 
South Tatsfield: SW bound: 85th percentile: 37.3mph 
The applicant states that a VAS was positioned some 100m North of Tatsfield Avenue in St Leonards 
Road, Nazeing. This is about 300m after the entry point of the 30mph zone. It has no impact for the 
300m and the pedestrian walkway is inadequate and narrow. Therefore a request has been made for 
the sign to be supplemented by a village gateway erected at the beginning of the built-up area on both 
sides. 

The B194 (St Leonards Road) is a busy route and is de-restricted immediately prior to the urban area. 
Entry speeds are typically in the 40/60mph range. It is important that these speeds are quickly 
reduced because of the pedestrian flow to the school and local shops. There is no road crossing until 
the lights at Nazeingbury. Many residents feel threatened by the speeding traffic. 

The VAS sign detailed above was located at a point that met ECC criteria, based on a speed survey 
and assessments carried out. The sign is 300m North of the speed limit sign. 

Gateway signs are possible, however a bespoke design may need to be considered, due to the 
narrow width of the verges. 

Page 58



Page 59



North Weald Bassett 

Woodside junction with High Road, North 
Weald

An island at the junction 
of Woodside and High 
Road

Indicative costs:  

Highway reference: 106 Voting reference: 10 
A request has been received for the installation of an island at the junction of Woodside and High 
Road, as this was said to be the best way of discouraging sat-nav juggernauts turning in and getting 
stuck at a width restriction south of the trading estate (which would allow emergency service vehicular 
access from B1393). 

This junction is at the end of a residential area, with a 40mph speed camera near-by. The proposal will 
still allow HGV access, as there will be a continued need for the existing industrial units to be serviced 
by these vehicles. Therefore, Officers recommend that this suggestion is not taken forward. 

Page 60



Woodside – Thornwood, North Weald Weight restriction Indicative costs:  
Highway reference: 108 Voting reference: 10 
It is considered by the applicant that extremely heavy duty lorries are becoming more prolific. 
Residents cannot contemplate walking down the road to the park with two children in the pram, when 
could come face to face with an extended juggernaut lorry on one of the blind bends or even a 'boy 
racer' 

The existence of a particular weight restriction does not impose a blanket ban on vehicles over that 
weight, for access purposes. This is because there are limited exemptions to Weight Restriction 
Orders in order to allow access to collect or deliver goods, or carry out maintenance. 

Page 61



Wellington Road and Hampden Court, North 
Weald

Traffic calming and 
parking restrictions 

Indicative costs:  
£40,000 

Highway reference: 104 Voting reference: 10 
Concerns have been raised around the use of Wellington Road as a rat run to the market on 
Saturdays, plus the amount of cars parked in the road at the junction of Wellington Road and 
Hampden Close, which obscure the view of oncoming traffic on Wellington Road. It is considered that 
there should be traffic calming and parking restrictions put in place in Wellington Road/Hampden 
Close. 

Existing junction protection is already in place and enforced at this location. 

North of Beaufort Close on Wellington Road, locating speed humps may be problematic due to the 
presence of vehicle crossovers. It may be easier to find locations south of Beaufort Close. This may 
affect the frequency of the humps and the impact of the scheme. 

A full consultation would need to be undertaken as part of the legal process, taking account of 
residents’ opinions and thus,this may make this a lengthy process. 

Page 62



Ongar 

Fyfield Road, Ongar Vehicle Activated Sign Indicative costs: 
£9,000 

Highway reference: New Voting reference: 11 
A vehicle activated sign would be located where speeds of vehicles meet the criteria. This would 
involve the undertaking of a speed survey to determine if the desired location meets current ECC 
criteria. The cost of a speed survey would be in the region of £350. 

Page 63



Roydon 

Church Mead junction with High Street, 
Roydon 

Junction protection Indicative costs: 
£5,000 

Highway reference: 118 Voting reference: 12 
It is considered that parking restrictions should be in place to stop cars parking near to the junction as 
this is causing an obstruction and interfering with sight lines. However, until this can be done, the 
Parish are relying on the Police to deal with the issue of obstruction. These are mainly commuters 
parking their cars and walking to the station so that they are there all day.  

Junction protection is possible at this location. Consultation would need to be undertaken as part of 
the legal process. 

Page 64



Waltham Abbey 

Fountain Place, Waltham Abbey Car parking/obstruction 
issues 

Indicative costs: 
£5,000  

Highway reference: New Voting reference: 13 
Currently, ECC do not fund the introduction of residents’ parking zones, or similar. Funding is provided 
by the District Council, but due to the ongoing substantial parking reviews, additional roads are not 
being considered at present. At the meeting of 22 June 2010 Members were advised that no new 
parking reviews would be taking place until the three which are underway are complete. Once 
complete, as the Cabinet decision currently stands, individual locations may be looked at, but only 
where practical solutions exist and where there is a clear consensus in favour of the proposal. 

ECC could pursue, should members wish, the installation of junction protection, to ensure visibility 
entering and exiting the junction. 

Page 65



Conclusion
Members are invited to discuss the report and put forward any comments pertaining to current works 
and programming. Members are also requested to comment on proposals put forward. 

Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

3

Med

Loughton

Chester Road

C
hi

ca
ne

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

s

S
pe

ed
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r 
C

he
st

er
 R

oa
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 
C

hi
ca

ne
s 

an
d 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

. C
ur

re
nt

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

30
m

ph
. H

is
to

ry
 o

f a
 

se
rio

us
 a

cc
id

en
t i

nv
ol

vi
ng

 a
 c

hi
ld

, p
et

iti
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
or

ga
ni

ze
d 

by
 r

es
id

en
ts

, 
re

po
rt

s 
of

 s
pe

ed
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

se
s 

on
 th

is
 s

ec
tio

n 
of

 C
he

st
er

 R
oa

d 
de

sp
ite

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sp
ee

d 
hu

m
ps

, t
he

 w
id

th
 o

f t
he

 r
oa

d 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 s
pe

ed
, P

ol
ic

e 
ha

ve
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
sp

ee
d 

ca
m

er
a 

ch
ec

ks
, i

ni
tia

l 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 V

A
S

 o
r 

S
ID

 w
as

 n
ot

 th
ou

gh
t t

o 
be

 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
in

 th
is

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 C

hi
ca

ne
s 

as
 in

 W
ill

in
ga

le
 R

oa
d 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ay
 o

f c
al

m
in

g 
tr

af
fic

. S
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 lo
ca

l 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

ill
or

s

It 
m

ay
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 c
hi

ca
ne

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
su

rv
ey

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 fi

nd
 a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f v

eh
ic

le
 

cr
os

so
ve

rs
 a

nd
 ju

nc
tio

ns
. T

he
re

 m
ay

 b
e 

no
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

a 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

cr
os

si
ng

, 
ho

w
ev

er
 a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
 m

ay
 b

e 
a 

be
tte

r 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e.
 In

 e
ith

er
 c

as
e 

a 
su

rv
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

m
os

t s
ui

ta
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
ty

pe
 o

f 
cr

os
si

ng
.

 £
12

,0
00

 p
er

 c
hi

ca
ne

; 
£8

0,
00

0 
fo

r 
a 

co
nt

ro
lle

d,
 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
; £

7,
50

0 
pe

r 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
 

Speeding

4

Med

Loughton

Oakwood Hill j/w Chigwell Lane

A
dd

iti
on

al
 li

ni
ng

, b
ol

la
rd

s 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

la
nt

in
g

T
he

 r
es

to
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

gr
as

s 
ve

rg
e 

in
 O

ak
w

oo
d 

H
ill

 fr
om

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 C
hi

gw
el

l L
an

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

R
od

in
g 

V
al

le
y 

N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

 o
n 

on
e 

si
de

 a
nd

 th
e 

O
ak

w
oo

d 
H

ill
 In

du
st

ria
l E

st
at

e 
on

 th
e 

ot
he

r 
to

 c
re

at
e 

a 
'g

at
ew

ay
' e

nt
ra

nc
e 

in
to

 th
is

 p
ar

t o
f L

ou
gh

to
n.

 C
ur

re
nt

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

30
m

ph
. 

S
ug

ge
st

ed
  s

ol
ut

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pa

rk
in

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 (
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s)
, 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 ti

m
be

r 
bo

lla
rd

s,
 a

nd
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
la

nt
in

g,
 tr

es
s 

an
d 

bu
lb

s 
to

 c
re

at
e

an
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
e 

'a
ve

nu
e'

 s
im

ila
r 

to
 th

e 
R

em
em

br
an

ce
 A

ve
nu

e 
in

 C
ol

ch
es

te
r 

ap
pr

oa
ch

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
A

12
. T

he
 g

ra
ss

 v
er

ge
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
 is

 
us

ed
 fo

r 
co

m
m

ut
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

 fr
om

 D
eb

de
n 

st
at

io
n.

 T
he

 v
er

ge
 p

er
m

an
en

tly
 s

ho
w

 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f v

eh
ic

le
s 

an
d 

de
po

si
t m

ud
 o

nt
o 

th
e 

ro
ad

. A
s 

pa
rt

s 
of

 th
e 

ve
rg

e 
be

co
m

e 
im

pa
ss

ab
le

, v
eh

ic
le

s 
pa

rk
 fu

rt
he

r 
fr

om
 th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n,
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

. T
he

 in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
D

eb
de

n 
pa

rk
in

g 
sc

he
m

e,
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

re
ce

nt
 

re
vi

ew
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 e
xa

ce
rb

at
e 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

, t
o 

th
e 

de
tr

im
en

t o
f t

he
 a

re
a.

 T
he

 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

to
w

n 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

T
he

 p
la

nt
in

g 
su

gg
es

tio
n 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 s

ch
em

e 
by

 E
C

C
, h

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 b
ol

la
rd

s 
w

ill
 p

re
ve

nt
 fo

ot
w

ay
/v

er
ge

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
nd

 m
ay

be
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
w

ith
ou

t t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
ad

di
tio

na
l w

ai
tin

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

£6
00

 p
er

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
bo

lla
rd

; 
£8

00
 p

er
 w

oo
de

n 
bo

lla
rd

 

Congestion

5

Med

Loughton

Loughton High Road j/w 
The Drive

R
em

ov
al

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
s 

an
d 

re
-d

ire
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

af
fic

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
tr

af
fic

 li
gh

ts
 ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 L
ou

gh
to

n 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d 
w

ith
 

B
ro

ok
ly

n 
A

ve
nu

e/
T

he
 D

riv
e.

 In
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ha

se
 o

f t
he

 
tr

af
fic

 li
gh

ts
 th

at
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

th
e 

eg
re

ss
 o

f v
eh

ic
le

s 
fr

om
 B

ro
ok

ly
n 

P
ar

ad
e 

in
to

 
B

ro
ok

ly
n 

A
ve

nu
e,

 w
hi

ch
 c

au
se

s 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

in
to

 th
e 

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

T
he

 D
riv

e.
 A

ll 
ve

hi
cl

es
 e

xi
tin

g 
fr

om
 B

ro
ok

ly
n 

P
ar

ad
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
tu

rn
 le

ft 
in

to
 B

ro
ok

ly
n 

A
ve

nu
e.

 C
ur

re
nt

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

30
m

ph
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 s
af

et
y,

 r
ed

uc
e 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
an

d 
is

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
T

ow
n 

C
ou

nc
il.

T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

t w
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

 2
00

8/
20

09
 'C

on
ge

st
io

n 
B

us
tin

g'
 s

ch
em

e,
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 
w

id
el

y 
un

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 v
ar

io
us

 g
ro

up
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
sa

l t
o 

re
m

ov
e 

pa
rk

in
g.

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 in
tr

od
uc

in
g 

'le
ft 

tu
rn

 o
nl

y'
 fr

om
 B

ro
ok

ly
n 

P
ar

ad
e,

 a
s 

th
is

 m
ay

 c
au

se
 d

an
ge

ro
us

 m
an

oe
uv

re
s.

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 s
ug

ge
st

 a
n 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
is

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t o

n 
th

e 
tim

in
gs

 o
f t

he
 li

gh
ts

 a
t p

ea
k 

ho
ur

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 B

ro
ok

ly
n 

P
ar

ad
e.

 U
nt

il 
fu

rt
he

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 a
re

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t i

t i
s 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

fo
r 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 to
 p

ut
 fo

rw
ar

d 
pr

op
os

al
s 

th
at

 d
iff

er
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 fr

om
 th

e 
'C

on
ge

st
io

n 
bu

st
in

g'
 s

ch
em

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 2
00

8/
9

 £
5,

00
0-

10
,0

00
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
co

st
s 

Congestion

6

Med

Loughton

Roding Road

R
ep

ha
si

ng
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

lig
ht

s 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

lin
in

g 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

a 
le

ft 
an

d 
rig

ht
 fi

lte
r 

la
ne

 a
t t

he
 

lig
ht

s

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 th

e 
tr

af
fic

 q
ue

ue
 fo

r 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 R
od

in
g 

R
oa

d 
at

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
V

al
le

y 
H

ill
/O

ak
w

oo
d 

H
ill

 a
nd

 o
fte

n 
ba

ck
s 

up
 fr

om
 th

e 
tr

af
fic

 li
gh

ts
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
br

id
ge

, c
au

si
ng

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

at
 th

e 
m

in
i r

ou
nd

ab
ou

t a
t t

he
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 A

ld
er

to
n 

H
ill

. T
hi

s 
pr

ob
le

m
 is

 n
ot

 is
ol

at
ed

 to
 p

ea
k 

pe
rio

ds
. T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t r

oa
d 

w
id

th
 fo

r 
tw

o 
lin

es
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c,

 h
ow

ev
er

 th
e 

ro
ad

 is
 r

eg
ul

ar
ly

 
ob

st
ru

ct
ed

 b
y 

pa
rk

ed
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

on
 th

e 
in

si
de

 la
ne

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 

ad
di

tio
na

l '
N

o 
w

ai
tin

g'
 r

es
tr

ic
tio

ns
 o

n 
R

od
in

g 
R

oa
d,

 n
or

th
 w

es
t o

f H
ill

 o
n 

th
e 

ea
st

er
ly

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ro
ad

, w
hi

ls
t e

na
bl

in
g 

tw
o 

lin
es

 o
f v

eh
ic

le
s 

to
 w

ai
t f

or
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
lig

ht
s 

at
 th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 p

ro
ve

 u
np

op
ul

ar
 w

ith
 

an
d 

be
 v

et
oe

d 
by

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

s/
sh

op
ke

ep
er

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
 th

is
 w

ill
 r

ed
uc

e 
co

ng
es

tio
ns

, p
ro

vi
de

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

du
ce

d 
po

llu
tio

n.
 

It 
is

 p
ro

xi
m

ity
 o

f R
od

in
g 

V
al

le
y 

H
ig

h 
S

ch
oo

l a
nd

 is
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

T
ow

n 
C

ou
nc

il

R
ep

ha
si

ng
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

na
ls

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 'r
ig

ht
 tu

rn
' a

nd
 'l

ef
t t

ur
n'

 fi
lte

r 
ar

ro
w

s 
w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
in

to
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 c
ap

ac
ity

. E
xi

st
in

g 
w

ai
tin

g 
re

st
ric

tio
n 

M
on

-F
ri 

2-
3p

m
 a

nd
 M

on
-S

at
 8

am
-6

.3
0p

m
 a

nd
 n

o 
w

ai
tin

g 
at

 
an

y 
tim

e 
at

 ju
nc

tio
ns

. A
ny

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 w
ai

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

ob
je

ct
ed

 to
 b

y 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

sh
op

-k
ee

pe
rs

. W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
on

ly
 a

 
m

in
im

al
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
at

 th
e 

si
gn

al
 ju

nc
tio

n,
 it

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 o
pe

n 
up

 th
e 

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

 to
 fu

lly
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

tw
o 

w
ay

 tr
af

fic
. T

hi
s 

ca
n 

be
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

at
 a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

os
t o

f £
3,

00
0.

 £
5,

00
0-

10
,0

00
 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
co

st
s;

 s
ho

ul
d 

th
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

pr
op

os
al

 is
 fe

as
ib

le
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t c
os

ts
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 

th
e 

re
gi

on
 o

f £
50

,0
00

-
15

0,
00

0.
 C

ha
ng

es
 to

 
w

ai
tin

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 c
ou

ld
 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
at

 a
 c

os
t 

of
 £

3,
00

0 

Congestion

Page 93



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

7

Med

Chigwell

Manor 
Road

V
A

S
R

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
V

A
S

 d
ue

 to
 c

ur
re

nt
 h

ig
h 

sp
ee

ds
. P

ro
xi

m
ity

 to
 s

ch
oo

l a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 
fr

om
 lo

ca
l r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es

N
o 

ad
ve

rs
e 

co
m

m
en

ts
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

is
 p

ro
po

sa
l, 

ho
w

ev
er

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
so

ug
ht

 fr
om

 th
e 

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
t i

n 
fu

nd
in

g 
an

y 
fu

tu
re

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

ts
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
V

A
S

 £
3,

50
0 

m
ai

ns
 p

ow
er

ed
 

V
A

S
; £

4,
50

0 
so

la
r 

po
w

er
ed

 V
A

S
 

Speeding

8

Med

Buckhurst Hill

Brook Road

C
re

at
io

n 
of

 fo
ot

pa
th

A
) 

B
ro

ok
 R

oa
d 

lin
ks

 w
ith

 B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
 w

ith
 th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f W

al
th

am
 

F
or

es
t. 

It 
is

 h
ea

vi
ly

 u
se

d 
by

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

. W
ith

ou
t a

 fo
ot

pa
th

, 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

, c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
el

de
rly

 a
re

 a
t r

is
k.

 B
) 

R
eq

ue
st

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

fo
ot

pa
th

 a
t 

B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
 e

nd
 o

f B
ro

ok
 R

oa
d 

to
 jo

in
 u

p 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

fo
ot

pa
th

 a
t t

he
 

W
al

th
am

 F
or

es
t E

nd
. B

ro
ok

 R
oa

d 
ru

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

E
pp

in
g 

N
ew

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
W

hi
te

ha
ll 

R
oa

d,
 w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 b

us
 s

to
p 

an
d 

B
an

cr
of

t's
 s

ch
oo

l i
s 

w
ith

in
 

w
al

ki
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
la

nd
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

is
su

es
 w

ith
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
of

 
Lo

nd
on

 a
nd

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

m
ay

 r
eq

ui
re

 m
ov

in
g 

a 
di

tc
h 

or
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

a 
ra

is
ed

 p
at

h 
ov

er
 th

e 
di

tc
h.

 L
oc

al
 r

es
id

en
ts

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 to

 lo
ca

l C
ou

nc
ill

or
s.

 
S

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

C
llr

 A
nn

 H
ai

gh
 a

nd
 C

llr
 J

ill
 S

ut
cl

iff
e,

 C
ha

irm
an

 J
oy

ce
 D

ar
by

 a
nd

 
C

llr
 A

ng
el

a 
C

as
s.

T
he

 la
nd

 is
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

of
 L

on
do

n.
 A

 p
os

si
bl

e 
‘w

ay
-le

av
e’

 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
re

at
e 

th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

. C
llr

 S
ut

cl
iff

e 
ha

s 
fo

rw
ar

de
d 

a 
le

tte
r 

se
nt

 
fr

om
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
of

 L
on

do
n 

(C
oL

) 
st

at
in

g 
th

at
: "

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
ab

le
 to

 p
er

su
ad

e
E

C
C

 o
r 

th
e 

D
C

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 I 

am
 c

on
fid

en
t t

ha
t t

he
 C

on
se

rv
at

or
s 

w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
pe

rm
is

si
on

 fo
r 

th
e 

w
or

ks
."

 3
0/

03
/1

0.
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 g
iv

en
 th

e 
‘in

 
pr

in
ci

pl
e’

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

C
oL

. N
ei

th
er

 th
e 

C
oL

 n
or

 th
e 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
an

y 
ad

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
.

 £
25

,0
00

-5
0,

00
0 

fo
ot

pa
th

 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n

Pedestrian

9

High

Matching

Downhall Road/Little Laver 
Road/Watery Lane

R
e-

al
ig

nm
en

t o
f p

rio
rit

y 
of

 ju
nc

tio
n

R
ea

lig
nm

en
t o

f p
rio

rit
y 

ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 D

ow
nh

al
l R

oa
d/

Li
ttl

e 
La

ve
r 

R
oa

d/
W

at
er

 
La

ne
, M

at
ch

in
g.

 E
re

ct
io

n 
of

 s
ig

ns
 w

ar
ni

ng
 'A

cc
es

s 
O

nl
y 

U
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

H
G

V
s'

 
or

 'U
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

S
at

 N
av

s'
 a

t b
ot

h 
en

tr
an

ce
s 

of
 W

at
er

 L
an

e.
 H

G
V

s 
ar

e 
us

in
g 

W
at

er
 L

an
e 

as
 a

 th
ro

ug
h 

ro
ut

e 
an

d 
it 

is
 to

ta
lly

 u
ns

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

su
ch

 v
eh

ic
le

s.
 

T
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

la
yo

ut
 is

 s
tr

ai
gh

t t
hr

ou
gh

 fr
om

 D
ow

nh
al

l R
oa

d 
to

 W
at

er
 L

an
e,

 
al

th
ou

gh
 th

e 
si

gn
ag

e 
po

in
ts

 to
 L

itt
le

 L
av

er
 R

oa
d,

 th
is

 o
nl

y 
en

co
ur

ag
es

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 W

at
er

 L
an

e.

T
he

 a
cc

id
en

t d
at

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

an
d 

it 
ha

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
no

 
re

co
rd

ed
 p

er
so

na
l i

nj
ur

y 
co

lli
si

on
s 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
. O

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

so
m

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 th

at
 

tu
rn

in
g 

of
 la

rg
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 H
G

V
s 

an
d 

tr
ac

to
rs

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 o
r 

w
ill

 r
ai

se
 

sa
fe

ty
 c

on
ce

rn
s.

 T
he

se
 ty

pe
s 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

fr
eq

ue
nt

 th
es

e 
ro

ad
s,

 a
nd

 n
ot

 o
nl

y 
th

e 
le

ng
th

 
bu

t a
ls

o 
th

e 
w

id
th

 o
f t

he
se

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

si
gn

. O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t a
n 

‘A
ut

ot
ra

ck
’ a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ha

t m
od

el
s 

th
e 

sw
ep

t p
at

h 
of

 a
ll 

ty
pe

s 
of

 
st

ee
re

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

sh
ow

n 
th

at
 H

G
V

’s
 c

ro
ss

 e
ith

er
 th

e 
ce

nt
re

 li
ne

 o
r 

cu
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ve

rg
e.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, c

en
tr

e 
lin

es
 a

nd
 c

at
’s

 e
ye

s 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 

th
e 

tr
aj

ec
to

ry
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 a
lig

nm
en

t o
f t

he
 b

en
d 

an
d 

to
 d

el
in

ea
te

 th
e 

ne
w

 r
oa

d 
la

yo
ut

, 
af

te
r 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly

 L
itt

le
 L

av
er

 R
oa

d 
gi

vi
ng

 w
ay

 to
 W

at
er

y 
La

ne
/D

ow
nh

al
l R

oa
d.

  E
ss

ex
 

C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
E

ng
in

ee
rs

 h
av

e 
ad

vi
se

d 
th

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
co

rn
er

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 ‘C
or

ne
r 

H
ou

se
’ n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

si
gh

t 
lin

es
. D

ou
bl

e 
ye

llo
w

 li
ne

s 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

op
po

si
te

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t t

hi
s 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 £
5,

00
0-

£7
,5

00
 

Junction Improvement

17

High

Nazeing

St Leonard's Road

V
ill

ag
e 

G
at

ew
ay

 a
nd

 
re

po
si

tio
ni

ng
 o

f V
A

S

A
 V

A
S

 w
as

 p
os

iti
on

ed
 s

om
e 

10
0m

 N
or

th
 o

f T
at

sf
ie

ld
 A

ve
nu

e 
in

 S
t L

eo
na

rd
s 

R
oa

d,
 N

az
ei

ng
. T

hi
s 

is
 a

bo
ut

 3
00

m
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

en
tr

y 
po

in
t o

f t
he

 3
0m

ph
 z

on
e.

 It
 

ha
s 

no
 im

pa
ct

 fo
r 

th
e 

30
0m

 a
nd

 th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
w

al
kw

ay
 is

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

nd
 

na
rr

ow
. T

he
re

fo
re

 a
 r

eq
ue

st
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

su
pp

le
m

en
te

d 
by

 a
 v

ill
ag

e 
ga

te
w

ay
 e

re
ct

ed
 a

t t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

lt-
up

 a
re

a 
on

 b
ot

h 
si

de
s.

 T
he

 B
19

4 
(S

t L
eo

na
rd

s 
R

oa
d)

 is
 a

 b
us

y 
ro

ut
e 

an
d 

is
 d

e-
re

st
ric

te
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 p
rio

r 
to

 th
e 

ur
ba

n 
ar

ea
. E

nt
ry

 s
pe

ed
s 

ar
e 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 in
 th

e 
40

/6
0m

ph
 r

an
ge

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rt

an
t t

ha
t t

he
se

 s
pe

ed
s 

ar
e 

qu
ic

kl
y 

re
du

ce
d 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

flo
w

 to
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l s
ho

ps
. T

he
re

 is
 n

o 
ro

ad
 

cr
os

si
ng

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
lig

ht
s 

at
 N

az
ei

ng
bu

ry
. M

an
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fe

el
 th

re
at

en
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

sp
ee

di
ng

 tr
af

fic
.

T
he

 o
rig

in
al

 V
A

S
 w

as
 lo

ca
te

d 
at

 a
 p

oi
nt

 th
at

 m
et

 E
ss

ex
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
cr

ite
ria

. T
hi

s 
si

gn
 is

 3
00

m
 N

or
th

 o
f t

he
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
si

gn
s.

 G
at

ew
ay

s 
ar

e 
po

ss
ib

le
, p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 v

er
ge

 w
id

th
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
£2

,0
00

Speeding

18

Med

Nazeing

Nazeing Road

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 (

ze
br

a)

It 
se

em
s 

th
at

 th
e 

be
st

 lo
ca

tio
n 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 th
e 

pr
es

en
t e

xi
ts

 fr
om

 S
t 

G
ile

s 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 N

az
ei

ng
bu

ry
 P

ar
ad

e.
 P

os
si

bl
y 

a 
sm

al
l p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bu
sh

ed
 in

 fr
on

t o
f t

he
 P

ar
ad

e 
m

ig
ht

 h
av

e 
to

 b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

se
rs

 o
f 

th
e 

C
hu

rc
h 

ca
r 

pa
rk

, p
re

sc
ho

ol
 p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

up
ils

 a
nd

 r
es

id
en

ts
 o

f E
liz

ab
et

h 
C

lo
se

 a
nd

 N
az

ei
ng

 R
oa

d 
w

ea
ve

 th
ei

r 
w

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n 

tr
af

fic
. T

he
y 

do
n'

t w
al

k 
to

 
th

e 
lig

ht
s 

at
 N

az
ei

ng
bu

ry
 c

ro
ss

ro
ad

s.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 o
bv

io
us

 r
is

ks
 o

f a
cc

id
en

ts
 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

, b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 s

pe
ed

in
g 

an
d 

m
is

ju
dg

em
en

t. 
O

ne
 a

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
f a

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 th
e 

ve
rg

es
 b

y 
he

av
y 

lo
rr

ie
s 

w
hi

le
 th

e 
dr

iv
er

s 
vi

si
ts

 th
e 

sh
op

s.
 

T
he

re
 is

 w
id

e 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 a
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

he
re

.

D
et

ai
le

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
rq

ui
re

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

pe
de

st
ra

in
 d

es
ire

 
lin

e 
(i.

e.
 w

he
re

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 c
ro

ss
/c

ro
ss

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
).

 T
he

 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

be
in

g 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t t
o 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 fa

ci
lit

y.
 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 o

f a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

cr
os

si
ng

 to
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

 a
t t

he
 N

az
ei

ng
 c

ro
ss

ro
ad

s 
[L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 N

ot
e 

2/
95

(S
.2

.1
.5

.1
)]

 £
80

,0
00

 fo
r 

a 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 

Pedestrian

Page 94



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

19

Med

Waltham Abbey

Honey Lane

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
, V

A
S

 a
nd

 
ad

di
tio

na
l y

el
lo

w
 li

ne
s

O
n 

th
is

 s
ec

tio
n 

of
 H

on
ey

 la
ne

, t
he

re
 is

 a
 s

ho
rt

 b
ut

 s
te

ep
 g

ra
di

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
, w

hi
ch

 
em

ph
as

is
es

 th
e 

sp
ee

d 
of

 tr
af

fic
. B

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 g
ra

di
en

t a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

sp
ee

ds
, t

he
re

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

a 
co

ns
id

er
ab

le
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ro
ad

. R
es

id
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 h
av

e 
ac

cr
ue

d 
a 

la
rg

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f e

vi
de

nc
e 

de
ta

ili
ng

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

a
pe

tit
io

n.
 T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 w

he
re

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t c

en
tr

e 
re

fu
ge

 is
 lo

ca
te

d,
 a

nd
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 V

A
S

 a
t t

he
 b

ot
to

m
 o

f t
he

 h
ill

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 th

e 
sh

op
. T

he
re

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t f

or
 fu

rt
he

r 
do

ub
le

 y
el

lo
w

 li
ne

s 
al

on
g 

th
is

 s
tr

et
ch

 o
f r

oa
d,

 b
ut

 r
es

id
en

t n
ee

ds
 m

us
t a

ls
o 

be
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

. T
he

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 w
ou

ld
 s

lo
w

 tr
af

fic
 d

ow
n,

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 s

af
er

 m
ea

ns
 o

f c
ro

ss
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 im
pr

ov
ed

 s
ig

ht
lin

es
 fo

r 
tr

af
fic

, d
ue

 to
 n

o 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 th
e 

zi
gz

ag
s.

 
T

he
 V

A
S

 w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 d

riv
er

s 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

ei
r 

sp
ee

d 
a 

th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 

th
e 

cr
os

si
ng

 a
nd

  m
in

i-r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t. 

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
 c

on
si

de
ra

bl
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f R
T

A
s 

at
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
is

 3
0m

ph
 b

ut
 is

 n
ot

 a
dh

er
ed

 to
 a

nd
 r

ar
el

y 
en

fo
rc

ed
. A

 1
50

 s
ig

na
tu

re
 p

et
iti

on
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 b
y 

lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
.

T
he

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

vi
ab

le
 a

s 
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 m
ee

t 
cu

rr
en

t c
rit

er
ia

, a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

m
ay

 b
e 

m
or

e 
su

ita
bl

e.
 T

hi
s 

ar
ea

 h
as

 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 r

ai
se

d 
by

 R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
fo

r 
po

ss
ib

le
 in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 th

e 
20

10
/1

1 
R

ou
te

 S
af

et
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 T
he

 s
ite

 w
as

 n
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
20

10
/1

1 
R

oa
d 

S
af

et
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
s 

ye
t 

ar
e 

un
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
 T

he
 V

A
S

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
be

in
g 

de
liv

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 C

IF

Speeding and Pedestrian

21

Low

Lambourne

Hoe Lane

W
ei

gh
t r

es
tr

ic
tio

n

H
oe

 L
an

e 
is

 a
 s

m
al

l w
in

di
ng

 r
ur

al
 r

oa
d 

w
ith

 a
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
of

 6
0m

ph
. T

he
re

 a
re

 
po

in
ts

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 w

id
e 

en
ou

gh
 fo

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 to

 p
as

s 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

 a
t s

pe
ed

. 
T

he
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
bl

in
d 

be
nd

s 
w

hi
ch

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

da
ng

er
. H

G
V

s 
re

gu
la

rly
 u

se
 

th
is

 r
oa

d 
in

 e
rr

or
, o

n 
an

 a
lm

os
t d

ai
ly

 b
as

is
. T

he
 P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 u
na

bl
e 

to
 g

et
 

an
 a

ge
nc

y 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
e 

w
id

th
 r

es
tr

ic
tio

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
 if

 a
 w

ei
gh

t 
re

st
ric

tio
n 

w
as

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

, t
he

y 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

on
ta

ct
 T

ru
ck

w
at

ch
, w

ho
 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n.
 T

he
 lo

ca
l s

ch
oo

l i
s 

lo
ca

te
d 

on
 H

oe
 

La
ne

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
th

e 
ro

ad
 is

 h
ea

vi
ly

 u
se

d 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
an

y 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

nd
 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s.

 It
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l p

ap
er

 o
n 

m
an

y 
oc

ca
si

on
s 

w
ith

 
co

nc
er

ns
 fr

om
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
T

hi
s 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 u

nt
il 

th
e 

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 F
re

ig
ht

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
is

 p
ut

 in
 p

la
ce

 £
3,

00
0 

co
st

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
w

ith
 T

ra
ffi

c 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

 a
nd

 s
ig

ns
 

Weight restriction

23

Med

Lambourne

Ongar Road

V
A

S

T
he

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

al
on

g 
O

ng
ar

 r
oa

d 
re

du
ce

s 
fr

om
 6

0m
ph

 to
 3

0m
ph

 o
ut

si
de

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 h

al
l. 

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 s
ig

ns
 lo

ca
te

d 
he

re
 to

 w
ar

n 
tr

af
fic

 o
f t

he
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it.

 H
ow

ev
er

 a
s 

th
es

e 
si

gn
s 

ar
e 

pl
ac

ed
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ro
ad

si
de

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 fo

lia
ge

 a
nd

 tr
ee

s,
 th

es
e 

si
gn

s 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

ob
sc

ur
ed

 b
y 

ov
er

gr
ow

n 
tr

ee
s.

 T
he

 n
ew

ly
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 c
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
 o

n 
O

ng
ar

 R
oa

d 
at

 th
e 

A
br

id
ge

 V
ill

ag
e 

H
al

l i
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
30

m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

zo
ne

 a
nd

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 th
is

 lo
ca

lit
y 

is
 n

ow
 m

or
e 

im
pe

ra
tiv

e 
fo

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 to

 b
e 

aw
ar

e 
th

at
 th

ey
 m

us
t r

ed
uc

e 
th

ei
r 

sp
ee

d 
to

 3
0m

ph
 a

t t
he

 v
ill

ag
e 

ga
te

w
ay

. T
he

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ig

ns
 a

re
 o

fte
n 

ob
sc

ur
ed

 b
y 

tr
ee

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
so

 a
re

 s
om

et
im

es
 o

bs
cu

re
d 

fo
r 

a 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

be
fo

re
 th

ey
 a

re
 

cu
t b

ac
k.

 A
 V

A
S

 w
ou

ld
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
tr

af
fic

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 

sp
ee

d.
 T

he
 w

al
l a

t t
he

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
at

 th
e 

vi
lla

ge
 h

al
l h

as
 b

ee
n 

kn
oc

ke
d 

do
w

n 
tw

ic
e 

an
d 

th
e 

ho
us

e 
op

po
si

te
 h

as
 a

ls
o 

ha
d 

its
 w

al
l k

no
ck

ed
 d

ow
n 

at
 le

as
t 

th
re

e 
tim

es
.

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ob
ta

in
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

su
pp

or
t o

f f
ut

ur
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 c
os

ts
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
V

A
S

£4
,5

00
 fo

r 
so

la
r 

po
w

er
ed

 
V

A
S

Speeding

25

High

Fyfield

B184

2 
x 

V
A

S
 e

ith
er

 e
nd

 o
f 

30
m

ph
 z

on
e

O
n 

th
e 

B
18

4 
O

ng
ar

/D
un

m
ow

 R
oa

d 
th

e 
sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

w
as

 r
ed

uc
ed

 fr
om

 4
0m

ph
 

to
 3

0m
ph

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
dr

ag
 o

f F
yf

ie
ld

 in
 2

00
7.

 T
hi

s 
fo

llo
w

ed
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

ca
m

pa
ig

ni
ng

 b
y 

re
si

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 s

uf
fe

re
d 

th
e 

co
ns

eq
ue

nc
es

 o
f s

pe
ed

in
g 

tr
af

fic
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

pr
ol

ife
ra

tio
n 

of
 m

ot
or

bi
ke

s 
(t

he
 B

18
4 

is
 a

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

ro
ut

e 
by

 b
ik

er
 

cl
ub

s)
. W

hi
ls

t t
he

 3
0m

ph
 li

m
it 

ha
s 

m
ad

e 
so

m
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, r
es

id
en

ts
 h

op
e 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
w

ith
in

 2
 s

pe
ed

 a
ct

iv
at

ed
 s

ig
ns

 a
t e

ith
er

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 

30
m

ph
 z

on
e.

 T
he

 P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r 
tw

o 
so

la
r 

po
w

er
ed

 m
ob

ile
 u

ni
ts

.T
he

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
a 

sp
ee

d 
su

rv
ey

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 m

ee
ts

 w
ith

 E
ss

ex
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
cr

ite
rio

n.
 £

4,
50

0 
fo

r 
so

la
r 

po
w

er
ed

 
V

A
S

Speeding

Page 95



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

28

Med

Buckhurst 
Hill

Beech Lane

O
ne

 w
ay

 r
oa

d
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

on
e 

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 a
lo

ng
 B

ee
ch

 L
an

e,
 g

iv
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

 
fr

om
 A

10
4 

to
 H

ig
h 

R
oa

d

A
pp

ro
va

l w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
 fr

om
 E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

P
ol

ic
e.

 P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 
su

ch
 a

 s
ch

em
e 

m
ay

 in
cr

ea
se

 v
eh

ic
le

 s
pe

ed
. I

f a
 o

ne
-w

ay
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ou
ld

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 s
ch

em
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 £
25

 -
 3

0,
00

0 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

T
R

O
 c

os
ts

 £
25

 -
 3

0,
00

0 
co

st
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 tr

af
fic

 
ca

lm
in

g,
 T

ra
ffi

c 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

, s
ig

ns
 a

nd
 li

ni
ng

 

Congestion

29

Med

Buckhurst 
Hill

Beech Lane

O
ne

 w
ay

 r
oa

d
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

on
e 

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 a
lo

ng
 B

ee
ch

 L
an

e,
 g

iv
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

 
fr

om
 H

ig
h 

R
oa

d 
to

 A
10

4

A
pp

ro
va

l w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

so
ug

ht
 fr

om
 E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

P
ol

ic
e.

 P
le

as
e 

no
te

 th
at

 
su

ch
 a

 s
ch

em
e 

m
ay

 in
cr

ea
se

 v
eh

ic
le

 s
pe

ed
. I

f a
 o

ne
-w

ay
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d,
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 w

ou
ld

 r
ec

om
m

en
d 

tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 s
ch

em
e.

 H
ow

ev
er

 th
is

 w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 £
25

 -
 3

0,
00

0 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

T
R

O
 c

os
ts

 £
25

 -
 3

0,
00

0 
co

st
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 tr

af
fic

 
ca

lm
in

g,
 T

ra
ffi

c 
R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

, s
ig

ns
 a

nd
 li

ni
ng

 

Congestion

30

High

Buckhurst Hill

Westbury Road

B
ui

ld
-o

ut
s

A
 r

eq
ue

st
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

B
uc

kh
ur

st
 H

ill
 p

ar
ki

ng
 r

ev
ie

w
. B

ui
ld

-o
ut

s 
w

ill
 

as
si

st
 in

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

on
e-

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 a
lo

ng
 

th
is

 s
tr

et
ch

 o
f r

oa
d

A
 s

pe
ed

 s
ur

ve
y 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t o

n 
th

is
 r

oa
d 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 1

0 
ca

rs
 

w
he

re
 r

ec
or

de
d 

as
 tr

av
el

lin
g 

th
e 

w
ro

ng
 w

ay
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

on
e 

w
ay

 s
ys

te
m

 in
 a

 2
 

da
y 

pe
rio

d.
 T

he
se

 r
ai

se
d 

co
nc

er
ns

, n
ot

 o
nl

y 
w

ith
 E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il,

 b
ut

 
al

so
 E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

P
ol

ic
e.

£3
0,

00
0

Driver Compliance

32

High

Chigwell

Manor Road j/w 
Vicarage Lane

Ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

A
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
in

to
 tu

rn
in

g 
m

ov
em

en
ts

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d
£3

0,
00

0

Junction Improvement

33

Med

Abridge

Market Place

Ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 n
o 

fe
as

ib
le

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

op
tio

ns
 a

t t
hi

s 
tim

e

Junction Improvement

34

Low

Stanford Rivers

Passingford

V
ar

io
us

1.
) 

T
ria

ng
le

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 M

ill
 L

an
e,

 T
oo

t H
ill

 -
 k

er
b 

th
e 

tr
ia

ng
le

, l
an

ds
ca

pe
 e

ith
er

 
flo

w
er

be
d 

or
 fl

ow
er

 tu
bs

, t
o 

cl
ea

n 
up

 e
ye

so
re

, s
to

p 
ob

tr
us

iv
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 a

 fo
ca

l p
oi

nt
 2

.)
 G

at
ew

ay
s 

at
 T

oo
t H

ill
, 6

no
 (

3 
lo

ts
 o

f 2
):

 O
ne

 p
ai

r 
on

 
E

pp
in

g 
R

oa
d,

 o
ne

 p
ai

r 
on

 S
ch

oo
l R

oa
d 

an
d 

on
e 

pa
ir 

on
 T

oo
t H

ill
 R

oa
d.

 C
ou

ld
 

be
 d

ec
or

at
iv

e 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 s
lo

w
 tr

af
fic

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
aw

ar
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 e
nt

er
in

g 
a 

vi
lla

ge
 a

re
a.

 3
.)

M
in

i r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t o

n 
A

11
3 

S
ta

nf
or

d 
R

iv
er

s 
at

 ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 
C

hu
rc

h 
R

oa
d.

 r
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 m
in

i r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t a

t t
hi

s 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 b

us
y 

ju
nc

tio
n.

 W
ou

ld
 r

ed
uc

e 
sp

ee
d.

1.
) 

T
he

 e
xa

ct
 lo

ca
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
P

ar
is

h 
C

ou
nc

il.
 2

.)
 

T
he

 g
at

ew
ay

s 
ar

e 
a 

so
un

d 
pr

op
os

al
, h

ow
ev

er
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

er
e 

be
in

g 
su

ffi
ci

en
t v

er
ge

 w
id

th
. 3

.)
 A

 m
in

-r
ou

nd
ab

ou
t o

n 
th

e 
A

11
3,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 p

rim
ar

y 
ro

ut
e 

is
 v

er
y 

un
lik

el
y 

to
 m

ee
t E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

cr
ite

ria
 1

.)
 £

5,
00

0-
7,

50
0.

 2
.)

 
£1

.2
00

 p
er

 g
at

ew
ay

 

Speeding

Page 96



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

39

High

Epping Town

Hemnall Street j/w Grove 
Lane

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
A

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
on

 H
em

na
ll 

S
tr

ee
t a

nd
 th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 G

ro
ve

 L
an

e.
 

S
up

po
rt

ed
 b

y 
E

pp
in

g 
S

oc
ie

ty

T
hi

s 
pr

op
os

al
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

fo
ot

w
ay

 w
id

th
 b

ei
ng

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
de

si
re

 li
ne

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

su
rv

ey
 

an
d 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

. I
t m

us
t a

ls
o 

m
ee

t w
ith

 th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
. 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 g

iv
en

 to
 in

st
al

lin
g 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

s 
w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 
re

du
ce

 v
eh

ic
le

 s
pe

ed
s.

 H
ow

ev
er

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

su
rv

ey
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d.
 A

 d
et

ai
le

d 
su

rv
ey

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
un

de
rt

ak
en

, w
hi

ch
 s

ho
w

s 
on

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ire
 la

nd
 to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
of

 L
on

do
n 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

 a
 n

ew
 

fo
ot

w
ay

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

rs
 d

iv
er

si
on

ar
y 

w
or

ks
. T

he
 

sc
he

m
e 

w
ou

ld
 a

ls
o 

be
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 a
 s

af
et

y 
au

di
t w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 r
ai

se
 r

oa
d 

sa
fe

ty
 

co
nc

er
ns

 £
7,

50
0 

pe
r 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

; £
80

,0
00

 fo
r 

a 
co

nt
ro

lle
d 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 

Pedestrian

40

Med

Epping Town

Town Green

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f 

al
um

in
iu

m
 s

ig
na

ge

T
hi

s 
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 p
ar

t o
f a

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
. T

he
 a

lu
m

in
iu

m
 s

ig
na

ge
 is

 v
er

y 
po

or
ly

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f t
he

 to
w

n 
gr

ee
ns

 a
nd

 d
et

ra
ct

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

pl
ea

sa
nt

 v
is

ua
l a

sp
ec

t. 
C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
si

gn
ag

e 
in

 te
rm

s 
of

 it
s 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
vi

su
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t m

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

m
e 

up
 w

ith
 a

 b
et

te
r 

sc
he

m
e 

of
 s

ig
na

ge
 

pe
rh

ap
s 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
a 

w
oo

de
n 

fin
ge

rp
os

t a
t t

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

si
gn

s

U
na

bl
e 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

is
. R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 d

ic
ta

te
 th

at
 tr

ad
iti

on
al

 fi
ng

er
po

st
 d

es
ig

ns
 

sh
ou

ld
 o

nl
y 

be
 u

se
d 

on
 u

nn
um

be
re

d 
ru

ra
l r

oa
ds

 w
he

re
 tr

af
fic

 s
pe

ed
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

. 
A

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
so

lu
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

to
 u

se
 b

la
ck

 p
os

ts
 a

nd
 b

la
ck

 b
ac

ke
d 

tr
af

fic
 

si
gn

s.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 u
se

d 
in

 o
th

er
 c

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s
 A

pp
ro

x 
£2

,0
00

 

Signage

41

Med

Epping Upland

B181

O
ut

si
de

 G
re

en
w

oo
d 

an
d 

C
he

qu
er

s 
- 

tr
af

fic
 

ca
lm

in
g 

in
 th

e 
fo

rm
 o

f 
di

ffe
re

nt
 r

oa
d 

su
rf

ac
es

, 
ru

m
bl

e 
st

rip
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

in
g 

be
nd

, 
sp

ee
d 

re
du

ct
io

n 
as

 fo
r 

th
e 

'C
ha

m
be

rs
 M

an
or

' 
co

rn
er

, s
ig

ni
ng

 (
e.

g.
, 

be
nd

, i
ce

) 
an

d 
cr

as
h 

ba
rr

ie
rs

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 w

he
re

by
 c

ar
s 

ha
ve

 g
on

e 
in

to
 th

e 
fr

on
t

ga
rd

en
 o

f C
he

qu
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
la

nd
 fr

on
tin

g 
G

re
en

w
oo

d.
 R

ec
en

tly
 a

 c
ar

 c
ra

sh
ed

 
in

to
 th

e 
ga

ra
ge

 o
f G

re
en

w
oo

d,
 e

nd
in

g 
up

 o
n 

th
e 

ga
ra

ge
 r

oo
f; 

po
lic

e 
es

tim
at

ed
 

th
e 

ca
r 

w
as

 tr
av

el
lin

g 
at

 6
0/

70
m

ph
. A

lth
ou

gh
 G

re
en

w
oo

d 
is

 s
et

 b
ac

k 
fr

om
 th

e 
ro

ad
, C

he
qu

er
s 

is
 n

ot
. I

t i
s 

un
de

rs
to

od
 th

at
 s

om
e 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

dr
iv

er
s 

no
t k

no
w

in
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

. T
he

re
 is

 a
ls

o 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f f

ro
st

/ic
e 

on
 th

e 
su

rf
ac

e 
w

he
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
sk

id
 a

nd
 lo

os
e 

co
nt

ro
l. 

P
ro

xi
m

ity
 to

 A
ll 

S
ai

nt
s 

P
ar

is
h 

C
hu

rc
h 

an
d 

th
e 

P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

B
ur

ia
l G

ro
un

d.
 It

 is
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

 to
 P

ar
is

h 
co

un
ci

llo
rs

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 a

s 
th

e 
B

18
1 

ha
s 

be
co

m
e 

a 
'ra

t r
un

' 
fo

r 
th

e 
M

11
 a

nd
 M

25
. T

he
re

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

 m
aj

or
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 tr
af

fic
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
 

an
d 

it 
is

 n
ot

 u
nk

no
w

n 
fo

r 
lo

rr
ie

s 
to

 h
av

e 
di

ffi
cu

lty
 n

eg
ot

ia
tin

g 
th

e 
be

nd
s 

ca
us

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
on

 a
 r

oa
d 

th
at

 h
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

be
en

 fr
ee

 fl
ow

in
g.

O
ffi

ce
r 

ad
vi

se
 th

at
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 r
um

bl
e 

st
rip

s 
to

o 
cl

os
e 

to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

w
ou

ld
 c

on
fli

ct
 w

ith
 c

ur
re

nt
 g

ui
de

lin
es

. H
ow

ev
er

 r
oa

d 
su

rf
ac

in
g 

tr
ea

tm
en

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
, b

ut
 w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

hi
gh

 in
iti

al
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
co

st
s.

 S
ig

ni
ng

 c
an

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

. A
t f

irs
t c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

th
er

e 
ap

pe
ar

s 
to

 b
e 

in
su

ffi
ci

en
t s

pa
ce

 fo
r 

cr
as

h 
ba

rr
ie

rs
. I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

pl
at

es
 

w
ith

 w
ar

ni
ng

 s
ig

ns
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
 a

 s
ch

em
e.

 £
2,

50
0 

si
gn

in
g/

lin
in

g 
sc

he
m

e;
 £

20
,0

00
 a

nt
i-s

ki
d 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

on
 b

en
ds

 

Speeding

42

High

Epping Upland

B181

R
oa

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
'T

ra
ve

lle
rs

 
F

rie
nd

' -
 th

ru
st

 b
or

e 
ho

riz
on

ta
lly

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ro
ad

 to
 r

ec
on

ne
ct

 th
e 

po
nd

 to
 th

e 
dr

ai
n 

ho
le

s 
op

po
si

te
F

ur
th

er
 in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

an
d 

ta
lk

s 
w

ith
 C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
of

 L
on

do
n 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
qu

ire
d

Drainage

44

Med

Moreton,
Bobbingworth & The 

Lavers

Little Laver Road adj 
Threeways property

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 k

er
bi

ng
 to

 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 d
iv

er
t a

cc
es

s 
w

at
er

T
he

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
at

 th
is

 ju
nc

tio
n 

T
hr

ee
w

ay
s,

 h
as

 r
eg

ul
ar

ly
 s

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 fl
oo

di
ng

 
an

d 
du

e 
to

 v
er

ge
 e

ro
si

on
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 in
 L

itt
le

 L
av

er
 R

oa
d 

th
e 

si
tu

at
io

n 
ha

s 
de

te
rio

ra
te

d.
 P

ro
po

sa
l h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 
ke

rb
in

g 
to

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
iv

er
t t

he
 e

xc
es

s 
w

at
er

£5
,0

00

Drainage

Page 97



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

46

High

Loughton

A121 High Road (near 
Spring Grove)

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

In
 v

ie
w

 th
at

 th
is

 s
ite

 h
as

 a
 h

ig
h 

ve
hi

cl
e/

pe
de

st
ria

n 
co

nf
lic

t r
at

io
, i

t i
s 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 a

 s
ig

na
liz

ed
 fa

ci
lit

y 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

at
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 T

he
 

w
id

th
 o

f t
he

 r
oa

d 
m

ay
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

a 
re

fu
ge

, b
ut

 th
er

e 
is

 g
oo

d 
vi

si
bi

lit
y 

at
 th

e 
si

te
 

fo
r 

a 
cr

os
si

ng
. A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
85

th
 p

er
ce

nt
ile

 s
pe

ed
s 

of
 tr

af
fic

 in
 b

el
ow

 3
0m

ph
 

no
rt

hb
ou

nd
, i

t i
s 

fa
st

er
 s

ou
th

bo
un

d 
an

d 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r 
a 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
. T

he
 v

ol
um

e 
of

 tr
af

fic
 is

 q
ui

te
 h

ig
h 

at
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 b

ut
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

. A
ss

um
in

g 
th

er
e 

is
 n

ot
 

a 
sc

ho
ol

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
pa

tr
ol

 s
ol

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

pe
ak

 h
ou

r 
de

m
an

ds
, t

he
 in

te
rr

up
tio

n 
to

 
tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

 w
ith

 a
 c

om
pu

te
riz

ed
 s

ig
na

liz
ed

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 
th

es
e 

pe
rio

ds
 o

nl
y.

 £
17

0,
00

0+
 fo

r 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 P

uf
fin

 
C

ro
ss

in
g

Pedestrian

47

High

Waltham Abbey

Crooked Mile, N of Saxon Way

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

T
he

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 2
4 

ca
su

al
tie

s,
 1

 s
er

io
us

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
a 

m
ot

or
cy

cl
e 

rid
er

 a
nd

 2
3 

sl
ig

ht
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

13
 d

riv
er

s 
an

d 
2 

m
ot

or
cy

cl
e 

rid
er

s,
 1

 c
yc

lis
t a

nd
 1

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
. I

f a
 c

ho
ic

e 
fo

r 
on

ly
 o

ne
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

w
er

e 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 fo

r 
th

is
 s

ite
, t

he
n 

th
e 

po
si

tio
n 

no
rt

h 
of

 S
ax

on
 W

ay
 w

ou
ld

 s
ee

m
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

ro
ad

 is
 s

in
gl

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
, i

t b
ro

ad
en

s 
ne

ar
in

g 
th

e 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
is

 a
lre

ad
y 

a 
ce

nt
ra

l r
ef

ug
e/

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

 d
iv

id
er

. A
 

pe
lic

an
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

is
 a

lre
ad

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
so

ut
h 

of
 M

on
ks

w
oo

d 
A

ve
 s

ig
na

lis
ed

 
ju

nc
tio

n.
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 d
es

ig
n 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
, a

 n
ew

 s
ig

na
lis

ed
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

co
ul

d 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 n

or
th

 o
f S

ax
on

 W
ay

. H
ow

ev
er

, b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 

ro
ad

 w
id

th
 in

 th
is

 a
re

a 
th

er
e 

m
ay

 b
e 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
st

ag
ge

re
d 

cr
os

si
ng

 fa
ci

lit
y,

 
w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 r

oa
d 

w
id

en
in

g/
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 r

ea
lig

nm
en

t t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t t
ra

ffi
c 

la
ne

 c
ap

ac
ity

. F
ur

th
er

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 a

nd
 s

af
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 s

uc
h 

a 
fa

ci
lit

y.

 £
25

0,
00

0 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 P
uf

fin
 

C
ro

ss
in

gs
 e

ith
er

 s
id

e 
of

 
th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 

Pedestrian

48

High

Waltham Abbey

,
Monkswood 

Avenue

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

S
ee

 C
ro

ok
ed

 M
ile

 N
 o

f S
ax

on
 W

ay
 £

15
0,

00
0 

fo
r 

up
gr

ad
in

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
si

gn
al

s 

Pedestrian

50

Med

Chigwell

A113 High Road; 
Dolphin Court

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

It 
w

as
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 g

ap
s 

in
 tr

af
fic

 to
 a

llo
w

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 to
 

cr
os

s 
sa

fe
ly

 a
t m

os
t t

im
es

. V
eh

ic
le

 s
pe

ed
s 

ar
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
, b

ut
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

os
e 

cr
os

si
ng

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 e

ld
er

ly
 a

nd
 u

na
cc

om
pa

ni
ed

 
ch

ild
re

n.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
ry

 to
 o

ne
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 5
 

ye
ar

s.
 F

or
 th

es
e 

re
as

on
s,

 a
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 is
 a

 
cr

os
si

ng
 a

t t
he

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. T
he

 e
xi

st
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 r
ig

ht
 tu

rn
 la

ne
 m

ea
ns

 
th

at
 p

os
iti

on
in

g 
a 

re
fu

ge
 in

 th
at

 a
re

a 
m

ay
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

. A
lte

rn
at

iv
el

y,
 

a 
re

fu
ge

 m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 p

rio
r 

to
 th

e 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f t

he
 fi

lte
r 

la
ne

 in
 th

e
ar

ea
 o

f D
ol

ph
in

 C
ou

rt
.

 £
7,

50
0 

pe
r 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

Pedestrian

51

Med

Buckhurst Hill

Buckhurst Way

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 s

pe
ed

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
ov

er
 3

0m
ph

 8
5t

h 
pe

rc
en

til
e 

an
d 

in
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

ld
er

ly
/c

hi
ld

re
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 o

ne
 s

lig
ht

 in
ju

ry
 t o

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
la

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
, c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 g
iv

en
 fo

r 
an

 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

 fa
ci

lit
y 

no
rt

h 
of

 S
ta

tio
n 

W
ay

. T
he

 p
re

ci
se

 lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 is

la
nd

 w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ca
re

fu
lly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 a

 fi
na

l d
es

ig
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
ne

ar
by

 ju
nc

tio
n 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
es

 o
f n

ot
 c

om
pr

om
is

e 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
.

 £
7,

50
0 

pe
r 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

Pedestrian

Page 98



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

52

Low

Chigwell

A123 Hainault Road

T
ra

ffi
c 

ca
lm

in
g/

sp
ee

d 
re

du
ct

io
n

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.

T
he

 w
id

th
 o

f t
he

 r
oa

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 fa

vo
ur

 a
 r

ef
ug

e.
 T

hi
s 

si
te

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

pa
ce

 
fo

r 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

cr
os

si
ng

 fa
ci

lit
y.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
lo

w
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 

fig
ur

e 
at

 th
is

 s
ite

, w
hi

ch
 is

 o
n 

a 
fa

irl
y 

bu
sy

 a
nd

 fa
st

 r
oa

d.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 a
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 e

ld
er

ly
 p

eo
pl

e 
cr

os
si

ng
 a

nd
 a

 s
m

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
at

 p
ea

k 
tim

es
 o

nl
y.

 A
cc

id
en

t f
ig

ur
es

 s
ho

w
 th

at
 o

ne
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

lig
ht

ly
 in

ju
re

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
. T

he
 s

pe
ed

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
is

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
an

d 
in

iti
al

ly
 

it 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 tr

af
fic

 c
al

m
in

g 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 h

el
p 

re
du

ce
 s

pe
ed

s 
an

d 
th

us
 m

ak
e 

cr
os

si
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
ea

si
er

. H
ow

ev
er

 a
s 

th
e 

A
12

3 
is

 a
 

pr
io

rit
y 

1 
ro

ut
e,

 n
o 

tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 £
40

,0
00

 fo
r 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
; £

10
0,

00
0+

 fo
r 

si
gn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
 

(b
ot

h 
w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
n 

up
da

te
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
su

rv
ey

 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 

Pedestrian

53

Med

Chigwell

B173 Manor Road j/w Stanwyck Road

Ju
nc

tio
n

im
pr

ov
em

en
t/p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
re

fu
ge

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

, h
ow

ev
er

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 w
as

 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ph
as

in
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 M

an
or

 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

F
en

ce
pi

ec
e

A
t t

hi
s 

si
te

, t
he

 w
id

th
 o

f t
he

 r
oa

d 
w

ou
ld

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
a 

re
fu

ge
 b

ut
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r 
a 

cr
os

si
ng

 fa
ci

lit
y.

 T
he

 s
ite

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
ha

za
rd

ou
s 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
sp

ee
d 

an
d 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 th

e 
tr

af
fic

 s
ud

de
nl

y 
tu

rn
in

g 
in

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 c

ut
-t

hr
ou

gh
 a

nd
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ca
su

al
tie

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
. A

lth
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

no
t 

a 
la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 c

ro
ss

in
g,

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

ro
ss

 fo
r 

th
e 

pa
rk

 
an

d 
nu

rs
er

y.
 It

 is
 fe

lt 
th

at
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

its
el

f w
ou

ld
 g

re
at

ly
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f t

hi
s 

si
te

. C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 g

iv
en

 to
 c

on
ve

rt
in

g 
th

e 
cu

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
to

 o
ne

-w
ay

 o
pe

ra
tio

n,
 o

r 
al

te
re

d 
to

 b
ec

om
e 

a 
le

ft 
tu

rn
 fi

lte
r 

fo
r 

tr
af

fic
 

tu
rn

in
g 

le
ft 

fr
om

 H
ai

na
ul

t R
oa

d 
w

es
tb

ou
nd

 in
 to

 M
an

or
 R

oa
d.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 

tr
an

sf
er

 tr
af

fic
 fl

ow
, l

oa
di

ng
 o

th
er

 ju
nc

tio
ns

, a
nd

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

as
se

ss
ed

. H
ow

ev
er

, a
ny

 s
uc

h 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 c

ha
ng

es
 c

ou
ld

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
tr

af
fic

 c
al

m
in

g 
el

em
en

ts
 to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
 8

5t
h 

pe
rc

en
til

e 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

po
ss

ib
le

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
re

fu
ge

 fa
ci

lit
y 

to
 a

id
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
us

ag
e.

 £
17

0,
00

0 
fo

r 
pu

ffi
n 

cr
os

si
ng

Pedestrian

54

High

Chigwell

B173 Manor Road W of 
Tomswood Road

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
ju

nc
tio

n
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
, h

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

is
 li

m
ite

d 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f c
ro

ss
ov

er
s.

A
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

t a
 h

ig
h 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 a

t t
he

se
 tw

o 
cr

os
si

ng
 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, t
he

re
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

an
y 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
in

ju
rie

s 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
, y

e t
du

e 
to

 tr
af

fic
 s

pe
ed

 a
nd

 b
eh

av
io

ur
, t

he
se

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 a
re

 p
ot

en
tia

lly
 v

er
y 

da
ng

er
ou

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

 c
as

e 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
si

gn
al

iz
in

g 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
its

el
f w

ith
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ph

as
e 

op
tio

n 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

 o
f 

as
si

st
in

g 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 to
 c

ro
ss

 s
af

el
y 

an
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

om
e 

so
rt

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
co

nt
ro

l, 
w

hi
ch

 w
ith

 tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

 c
ou

ld
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
sp

ee
d 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

sa
fe

ty
 fo

r 
dr

iv
er

s.

 £
17

0,
00

 if
 a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 fo
un

d 
fo

r 
a 

pu
ffi

n 
cr

os
si

ng
; £

7,
50

0 
pe

r 
re

fu
ge

 is
 a

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

op
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
a 

su
ita

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

no
t b

e 
fo

un
d;

 
£4

0,
00

0 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

 

Pedestrian

55

Med

Chigwell

B173 Manor Road E of 
Tomswood Road

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
ju

nc
tio

n
S

ee
 B

17
3 

M
an

or
 R

oa
d 

E
 o

f T
om

sw
oo

d 
R

oa
d 

 £
17

0,
00

 if
 a

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 fo
un

d 
fo

r 
a 

pu
ffi

n 
cr

os
si

ng
; £

7,
50

0 
pe

r 
re

fu
ge

 is
 a

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

op
tio

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
a 

su
ita

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

no
t b

e 
fo

un
d;

 
£4

0,
00

0 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

 

Pedestrian

Page 99



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

56

Low

Chigwell

Turpins Lane

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
ju

nc
tio

n
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

P
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
w

er
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
, a

s 
ar

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
flo

w
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 d

el
ay

 in
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

. H
ow

ev
er

, i
t m

us
t b

e 
bo

rn
 in

 m
in

d 
th

at
 

th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

21
 c

as
ua

lti
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 tw

o 
fa

ta
l, 

on
 th

is
 r

oa
d 

ov
er

 th
e 

pa
st

 5
 

ye
ar

s.
 It

 is
 a

dv
is

ed
 th

at
 s

ig
na

liz
in

g 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
ph

as
in

g,
 w

ou
ld

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 p

er
ha

ps
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 to
 m

in
im

iz
in

g 
ac

ci
de

nt
s.

 Y
et

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 a
dv

is
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 
su

ita
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r 
a 

cr
os

si
ng

 to
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

an
d 

si
gh

t l
in

es
 m

ay
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 

as
 th

e 
ro

ad
 la

yo
ut

 n
ar

ro
w

s
 £

40
,0

00
 fo

r 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

Pedestrian

57

Low

Chigwell

Tomswood Road

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
ju

nc
tio

n
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

T
he

re
 w

er
e 

on
ly

 a
 r

el
at

iv
el

y 
sm

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 r

ec
or

de
d 

an
d 

th
e 

sp
ee

d 
of

 tr
af

fic
 w

as
 g

en
er

al
ly

 fa
irl

y 
sl

ow
 o

n 
th

is
 a

rm
 o

f t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n.

 In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 n
o 

in
ju

rie
s 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 r
ec

or
de

d 
in

 th
e 

pa
st

 5
 y

ea
rs

. 
T

he
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
t t

hi
s 

lo
ca

tio
n 

w
er

e 
no

t c
on

si
de

re
d 

to
 b

e 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 to
 c

ro
ss

. I
n 

vi
ew

 o
f t

hi
s,

 it
 is

 n
ot

 fe
lt 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

se
pa

ra
te

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 th
is

 lo
ca

tio
n,

 b
ut

 s
af

et
y 

at
 th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 

gr
ea

tly
 im

pr
ov

ed
 if

 a
 s

ig
na

liz
ed

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t w
as

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
. A

 s
ig

na
liz

ed
 

ph
as

e 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
on

 th
is

 le
g;

 h
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
w

ho
le

 ju
nc

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 r

eg
ul

ar
 h

ea
dw

ay
 g

ap
s 

in
 tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

 
an

d 
th

us
 p

ro
vi

de
 g

re
at

er
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 in
 T

om
sw

oo
d 

R
oa

d.
 O

ffi
ce

rs
 

ad
vi

se
 th

at
 a

 r
ef

ug
e 

at
 th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
m

ay
 b

e 
po

ss
ib

le
.

 £
7,

50
0 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

. 

Pedestrian

58

Low

Epping

B181 Lindsey Street

T
ra

ffi
c 

ca
lm

in
g/

sp
ee

d 
re

du
ct

io
n

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.

T
he

 w
id

th
 o

f t
he

 r
oa

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 fa

vo
ur

 a
 r

ef
ug

e,
 b

ut
 p

ot
en

tia
lly

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
pa

ce
 

fo
r 

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 fa

ci
lit

y.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
si

te
 is

 a
 c

ut
 th

ro
ug

h 
fo

r 
tr

af
fic

 a
t p

ea
k 

ho
ur

s,
 it

 is
 a

 fa
irl

y 
qu

ite
 s

ite
 a

nd
 n

o 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

er
e 

no
te

d 
to

 c
ro

ss
, n

or
 h

av
e 

th
er

e 
be

en
 a

ny
 r

ec
or

de
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ca

su
al

tie
s’

 in
 th

e 
pa

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
. A

s 
th

e 
85

th
 p

er
ce

nt
ile

 s
pe

ed
 o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

is
 3

4 
an

d 
36

m
ph

, c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
co

ul
d 

be
 g

iv
en

 
to

 s
om

e 
fo

r 
of

 tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

re
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

pp
ea

r 
to

 b
e 

an
y 

di
ffi

cu
lty

 in
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

. I
t m

us
t a

ls
o 

be
 n

ot
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

fo
ot

w
ay

 is
 n

ar
ro

w
 

an
d 

th
e 

gr
as

s 
ve

rg
e 

is
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n 

of
 L

on
do

n
 £

17
0,

00
0 

pu
ffi

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 

Pedestrian

60

High

Loughton

Church Hill (near the 
Uplands)

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
. (

S
ta

pl
es

 R
oa

d 
S

ch
oo

l) 
S

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

C
ou

nc
ill

or
 M

rs
 C

 P
on

d

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

C
hu

rc
h 

H
ill

 w
as

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

hi
gh

 a
nd

 fl
ow

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

co
ns

ta
nt

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

da
y.

 S
im

ila
rly

, t
he

 r
ec

or
de

d 
tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

s 
w

er
e 

hi
gh

. I
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 a

 s
ig

na
l-c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
 is

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 
th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 It

 is
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 a
nt

i-s
ki

d 
su

rf
ac

in
g 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

al
so

 a
s 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 e

xc
ee

d 
th

e 
m

in
im

um
 fo

r 
a 

si
gn

al
-c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
. A

 
su

ita
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

N
or

th
 E

as
t o

f t
he

 U
pl

an
ds

 fo
r 

a 
po

ss
ib

le
 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 in

st
al

la
tio

n,
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

is
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

T
ra

ps
 H

ill
 ju

nc
tio

n.
 N

o 
ot

he
r 

su
ita

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
 a

t t
he

 p
or

po
se

d 
lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
ne

w
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 £
80

,0
00

 z
eb

ra
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

Pedestrian

61

High

Epping

Station Road

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
/p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
re

fu
ge

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

flo
w

s 
w

er
e 

fa
irl

y 
hi

gh
 a

nd
 r

em
ai

n 
fa

irl
y 

co
ns

ta
nt

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
da

y.
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
ho

w
ev

er
 v

er
y 

fe
w

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 r

ec
or

de
d 

cr
os

si
ng

 
th

e 
ro

ad
 a

nd
 n

o 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
. I

t
is

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 th

at
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
nt

o 
th

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

ro
ss

in
g,

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
pr

ox
im

ity
 o

f j
un

ct
io

ns
, r

es
id

en
ts

’ d
riv

ew
ay

s 
an

d 
bu

s 
st

op
s.

 A
s 

S
ta

tio
n 

R
oa

d 
is

 a
 p

rio
rit

y 
1/

2 
ro

ut
e,

 tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

w
ill

 n
ot

 
be

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 a

t t
hi

s 
lo

ca
tio

n.
 L

oc
at

io
ns

 a
re

 li
m

ite
d 

ne
ar

 to
 th

e 
un

de
rg

ro
un

d 
st

at
io

n.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

 n
ea

r 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t

 £
17

0,
00

0 
pu

ffi
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 

Pedestrian

Page 100



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

62

Med

Buckhurst Hill

Roding Lane

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 
si

gn
al

 ju
nc

tio
n

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.

It 
is

 n
ot

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

en
tir

el
y 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
th

at
 a

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
is

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 th
is

 
lo

ca
tio

n,
 a

s 
a 

fa
ci

lit
y 

al
re

ad
y 

ex
is

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
de

si
re

 li
ne

. H
ow

ev
er

, p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 to
 

th
e 

ea
st

 o
f L

ou
gh

to
n 

W
ay

 a
re

 s
til

l r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
ro

ss
 L

ou
gh

to
n 

W
ay

 to
 r

ea
ch

 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

. I
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

ar
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
ju

nc
tio

n 
on

 L
ou

gh
to

n 
W

ay
 a

nd
 p

os
si

bl
y 

R
od

in
g 

La
ne

. H
ow

ev
er

 fu
rt

he
r 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
ph

as
e 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 c

au
se

 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e 

de
la

y 
an

d 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
si

gn
al

s.

 £
5,

00
0-

10
,0

00
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y;

 £
20

0,
00

0 
si

gn
al

 
de

si
gn

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 

Pedestrian

63

Med

Loughton

Rectory Lane

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
. (

A
ld

er
to

n 
S

ch
oo

l)

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

flo
w

s 
on

 R
ec

to
ry

 L
an

e 
ar

e 
fa

irl
y 

lo
w

, w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
M

 
pe

ak
. T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 w

as
 a

ls
o 

lo
w

 a
nd

 it
 is

 n
ot

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 la
rg

e 
la

te
nt

 d
em

an
d 

to
 c

ro
ss

 th
e 

ro
ad

. A
 

si
gn

al
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
no

t r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
at

 th
is

 lo
ca

tio
n.

 H
ow

ev
er

, 
tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

s 
an

d 
sp

ee
ds

 w
er

e 
hi

gh
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 m
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

da
y 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
to

 c
ro

ss
. I

t i
s 

th
er

ef
or

e 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
 ju

st
 s

ou
th

 o
f N

ew
m

an
's

 L
an

e 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 n
ar

ro
w

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
, p

os
si

bl
y 

on
 th

e 
be

nd
, i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 a
ss

is
t 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 in

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 w

hi
le

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
ve

hi
cl

e 
sp

ee
ds

. A
 s

im
ila

r 
fa

ci
lit

y 
ha

s 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 in

st
al

le
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

so
ut

h 
on

 R
ec

to
ry

 L
an

e.
 £

7,
50

0 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
. 

Pedestrian

64

Med

Waltham Abbey

Crooked Mile (Harold Crescent)

S
ig

na
l c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
/p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
re

fu
ge

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.

A
lth

ou
gh

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 th

e 
no

rt
h 

of
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 H

ar
ol

d 
C

r,
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
th

e 
de

si
re

 to
 c

ro
ss

 s
ou

th
 o

f t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

cl
os

er
 to

 th
e 

r/
ab

ou
t. 

A
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

is
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
H

ar
ol

d 
C

r 
an

d 
th

e 
r/

ab
ou

t. 
T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 e

ith
er

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
to

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
of

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 M
ile

 C
l o

r 
on

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 th

e 
r/

ab
ou

t. 
A

s 
ve

hi
cl

e 
sp

ee
ds

 a
re

 r
ec

or
de

d 
as

 h
ig

he
r 

th
an

 3
5m

ph
 a

 s
ig

na
lis

ed
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 th
an

 a
 Z

eb
ra

 c
ro

ss
in

g.
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 fu

rt
he

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

is
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 s
ig

na
l-c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
cr

os
si

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

M
ile

 C
l a

nd
 H

ar
ol

d 
C

r.
 T

he
 v

is
ib

ili
ty

 e
xc

ee
ds

 m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
a 

fo
rm

al
 

cr
os

si
ng

 a
nd

 s
o 

it 
is

 r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 a

nt
i-s

ki
d 

su
rf

ac
in

g 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 A

lth
ou

gh
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
 d

at
a 

w
as

 n
ot

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
P

ar
kl

an
ds

 a
nd

 S
ew

ar
ds

to
ne

 R
d 

ar
m

s 
of

 th
e 

r/
ab

ou
ts

, i
t i

s 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 c
ro

ss
in

gs
 a

re
 a

ls
o 

in
ve

st
ig

at
ed

 to
 a

ss
is

t p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 tr
av

el
lin

g 
to

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s.
 N

ew
 

cr
os

si
ng

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

N
or

th
 fr

om
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
dr

op
pe

d 
ke

rb
s,

 o
n 

th
e 

tr
af

fic
 is

la
nd

, t
o 

av
oi

d 
ve

hi
cl

e 
cr

os
so

ve
rs

 e
ith

er
 s

id
e.

 £
7,

50
0 

to
 a

m
en

d 
ex

is
tin

g 
ve

hi
cl

e 
sp

lit
te

r 
is

la
nd

 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 

Pedestrian

65

Low

Loughton

Pyrles Lane

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

N
ea

r 
th

e 
sh

op
s 

a 
cr

os
si

ng
 c

ou
ld

 o
nl

y 
be

 in
st

al
le

d 
by

 r
em

ov
in

g 
so

m
e 

of
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 b
ot

h 
si

de
s 

of
 th

e 
ro

ad
. A

s 
pa

rk
in

g 
is

 w
el

l u
se

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

da
y,

 
it 

is
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

at
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 a
 p

re
fe

rr
ed

 o
pt

io
n.

 A
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

co
ul

d 
be

 in
st

al
le

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
so

ut
h 

sl
ow

 P
yr

le
s 

La
ne

, b
ut

 d
ro

p 
ke

rb
s 

an
d 

dr
iv

ew
ay

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
av

oi
de

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

de
si

re
 li

ne
. A

lth
ou

gh
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
flo

w
s 

ar
e 

hi
gh

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 m

os
t o

f t
he

 d
ay

, t
ra

ffi
c 

flo
w

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
. 

T
he

re
fo

re
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 c

ro
ss

 in
 th

e 
ga

ps
 w

ith
ou

t u
si

ng
 a

 fo
rm

al
 

cr
os

si
ng

. I
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 n

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n 

co
nc

er
ni

ng
 a

 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
at

 th
is

 s
ite

. T
he

re
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 s
ch

oo
l c

ro
ss

in
g 

pa
tr

ol
 a

t t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 H

ill
yf

ie
ld

s 
an

d 
C

he
st

er
 R

oa
d.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

cr
os

si
ng

 a
t t

he
 r

ai
se

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 th
e 

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 H
ill

yf
ie

ld
s 

an
d 

C
he

st
er

 
R

oa
d

£7
,5

00

Pedestrian

Page 101



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

66

Med

Loughton

Alderton Hill

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
A

 h
is

to
ric

al
 r

eq
ue

st
 fo

r 
a 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
.

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
lo

w
 tr

af
fic

 le
ve

ls
 a

nd
 s

pe
ed

s 
it 

is
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 th
at

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

 is
 in

st
al

le
d 

on
 B

or
de

rs
 L

an
e 

ea
st

 o
f T

he
 H

aw
th

or
ns

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t r
oa

d 
w

id
th

. A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
 s

ou
th

 o
f B

or
de

rs
 L

an
e 

ag
ai

n 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

su
ffi

ci
en

t r
oa

d 
w

id
th

 a
nd

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
. T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
di

st
an

ce
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
fr

om
 A

ld
er

to
n 

H
ill

 h
av

e 
to

 w
al

k 
to

 r
ea

ch
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

. T
he

 
pr

ox
im

ity
 o

f t
he

 s
ch

oo
l m

ea
ns

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
. H

ow
ev

er
, d

ue
 to

 th
e 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f 

cr
os

so
ve

rs
, t

he
 lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

 w
ill

 b
e 

ve
ry

 d
iff

ic
ul

t. 
T

he
 

lo
ca

tio
n 

is
 o

n 
a 

hi
ll 

w
ith

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

vi
sa

bi
lit

y
£7

,5
00

Pedestrian

67

Low

Epping

Ivy Chimneys

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

A
 h

is
to

ric
al

 r
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

a 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.

T
he

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

co
un

t i
llu

st
ra

te
s 

hi
gh

 v
ol

um
es

 o
f p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 
ar

e 
co

nc
en

tr
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

m
or

ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
fte

rn
oo

n 
w

ith
 v

er
y 

lit
tle

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

m
ov

em
en

t o
f t

he
 r

em
ai

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 d

ay
. I

n 
th

es
e 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
a 

sc
ho

ol
 

cr
os

si
ng

 p
at

ro
l i

s 
us

ua
lly

 th
e 

be
st

 w
ay

 o
f c

on
tr

ol
lin

g 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

th
es

e 
cr

os
si

ng
 m

ov
em

en
ts

. T
he

re
 is

 r
ed

uc
ed

 v
is

ab
ili

ty
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

ro
ad

 b
ei

ng
 o

n 
an

 
in

cl
in

e,
 w

ith
 b

en
ds

 a
nd

 c
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

 w
id

th
 m

ay
 b

e 
an

 is
su

e 
if 

pa
rk

in
g 

ba
y 

co
ul

d 
no

t b
e 

us
ed

£7
,5

00

Pedestrian

69

Low

Waltham Abbey

Honey Lane (Wood 
Green Road)

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

T
he

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

flo
w

s 
ar

e 
ve

ry
 lo

w
 a

nd
 a

lth
ou

gh
 tr

af
fic

 le
ve

ls
 a

re
 h

ig
h 

it 
is

 n
ot

 
fe

lt 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 la
te

nt
 d

em
an

d 
to

 c
ro

ss
 a

t t
hi

s 
lo

ca
tio

n.
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 n

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n 

to
 is

 ta
ke

n.
 V

er
y 

fa
st

 r
oa

d 
w

ith
 n

o 
fo

ot
w

ay
 

on
 N

or
th

 s
id

e 
of

 H
on

ey
 L

an
e

 £
40

,0
00

 fo
r 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng

Pedestrian

70

Med

Waltham Abbey

Honey Lane 
(Stonyshotts)

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge
/tr

af
fic

 
ca

lm
in

g

M
an

y 
of

 th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

ar
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ho

 o
fte

n 
ne

ed
 fu

rt
he

r 
as

si
st

an
ce

 in
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

. A
lth

ou
gh

 tr
af

fic
 fl

ow
 r

em
ai

ns
 fa

irl
y 

co
ns

ta
nt

 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

da
y,

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 p

ea
k 

in
 v

eh
ic

le
 fl

ow
s 

at
 s

im
ila

r 
tim

e 
pe

rio
ds

 to
 

th
e 

pe
ak

 in
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
tr

af
fic

. I
t i

s 
th

er
ef

or
e 

su
gg

es
te

d 
th

at
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

ge
th

er
 w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
tr

af
fic

 c
al

m
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
 to

 s
lo

w
 v

eh
ic

le
 s

pe
ed

s.
 C

ar
ef

ul
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
 r

eg
ar

ds
 to

 th
e 

si
tti

ng
 o

f t
he

 c
ro

ss
in

g.
 £

7,
50

0 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
 

Pedestrian

71

Low

Waltham 
Abbey

Sewardston
e Road

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 T
he

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

flo
w

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

t t
hi

s 
si

te
 a

re
 v

er
y 

lo
w

, a
nd

 a
lth

ou
gh

 tr
af

fic
 

le
ve

ls
 a

re
 h

ig
h 

it 
is

 n
ot

 fe
lt 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 la

te
nt

 d
em

an
d 

to
 c

ro
ss

 a
t t

hi
s 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 It
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

th
at

 n
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
be

 ta
ke

n 
at

 th
is

 
si

te
.

 £
40

,0
00

 fo
r 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng

Pedestrian

72

Low

Loughton

Goldings Hill

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

T
he

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

flo
w

 r
ec

or
de

d 
w

as
 v

er
y 

lo
w

 a
nd

 a
lth

ou
gh

 tr
af

fic
 le

ve
ls

 a
re

 
hi

gh
, i

t i
s 

no
t f

el
t t

ha
t t

he
re

 is
 la

te
nt

 d
em

an
d 

to
 c

ro
ss

 a
t t

hi
s 

lo
ca

tio
n.

 It
 

ap
pe

ar
s 

th
at

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
re

as
on

 to
 c

ro
ss

 th
e 

ro
ad

 is
 fo

r 
th

e 
bu

s 
st

op
 o

n 
ei

th
er

 
si

de
 o

f t
he

 r
oa

d.
 It

 is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
th

at
 n

o 
fu

rt
he

r 
ac

tio
n 

be
 ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 r
eg

ar
ds

 to
 a

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

.
 £

40
,0

00
 fo

r 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

Pedestrian

73

Med

Epping

Coopersale 
Common

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

re
fu

ge

A
lth

ou
gh

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
is

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

hi
gh

, t
ra

ffi
c 

flo
w

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
. T

he
 

ex
is

te
nc

e 
of

 la
y-

by
s 

by
 th

e 
sh

op
s 

m
ea

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

 in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ho

ps
 is

 n
ot

 fe
as

ib
le

 w
ith

ou
t s

om
e 

lo
ss

 o
f t

he
 la

y-
by

 a
nd

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
lo

w
 tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

 th
is

 is
 n

ot
 r

ec
om

m
en

de
d.

 H
ow

ev
er

 it
 is

 
su

gg
es

te
d 

th
at

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
re

fu
ge

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 s
ou

th
 o

f I
ns

tit
ut

e 
R

oa
d,

 to
 a

ss
is

t p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 a
cc

es
si

ng
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

 fr
om

 th
e 

w
es

t o
f C

op
pe

rs
al

e 
C

om
m

on
 £

7,
50

0 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
 

Pedestrian

Page 102



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

74

Med

Loughton

Barrington Road (j/w 
Doubleday Road)

D
ro

pp
ed

 k
er

b 
lo

ca
tio

n 
x2

 £
10

00
 p

er
 p

ai
r 

Informal crossing

75

Med

Loughton

Sandford Avenue (j/w 
Westall Road)

D
ro

pp
ed

 k
er

b 
lo

ca
tio

n 
x2

 £
10

00
 p

er
 p

ai
r 

Informal crossing

76

Med

Loughton

Colebrook Lane (j/w 
Westall Road)

D
ro

pp
ed

 k
er

b 
lo

ca
tio

n 
x2

 
(o

ne
 o

f t
he

se
 o

n 
's

ou
th

' 
si

de
 o

f W
es

ta
ll 

R
oa

d)
 £

10
00

 p
er

 p
ai

r 

Informal crossing

77

Med

Loughton

Harvey Gardens (j/w 
Colebrook Lane)

D
ro

pp
ed

 k
er

b 
lo

ca
tio

n 
x2

 £
10

00
 p

er
 p

ai
r 

Informal crossing

78

Med

Loughton

Conveyers Way (j/w 
Colebrook Lane)

D
ro

pp
ed

 k
er

b 
lo

ca
tio

n 
x2

 £
10

00
 p

er
 p

ai
r 

Informal crossing

80

High

Buckhurst Hill

Forest Edge

S
pe

ed
 h

um
ps

; o
r 

2x
 

V
A

S
T

o 
he

lp
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 r

oa
d 

be
in

g 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

ra
t r

un

It 
w

ou
ld

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
os

si
bl

e 
to

 d
et

er
 'r

at
-r

un
ni

ng
' w

ith
 th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 
m

ea
su

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

sp
ee

d 
hu

m
ps

 o
r 

bu
ild

 o
ut

s,
 h

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
hi

gh
 fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

of
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

cr
os

so
ve

rs
 m

ay
 p

re
ve

nt
 s

uc
h 

a 
sc

he
m

e.
 A

 s
ur

ve
y 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d
£4

0,
00

0 
- 

sp
ee

d 
hu

m
ps

£9
,0

00
 -

 V
A

S

Speeding

Page 103



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

81

Med

Chigwell

Gravel Lane j/w
Maypole Drive

Ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

A
lre

ad
y 

ha
s 

ex
is

tin
g 

ju
nc

tio
n 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n.
 E

xt
ra

 s
ig

na
ge

 c
ou

ld
 c

on
fu

se
 d

riv
er

s 
an

d 
ad

d 
un

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
st

re
et

 c
lu

tte
r

Junction Improvement

82

High

Epping

Stonards Hill j/w 
Stewards Green Road

Ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
w

ith
 S

te
w

ar
ds

 G
re

en
 

R
oa

d
£3

0,
00

0

Junction Improvement

84

Med

Loughton

Albion Hill

O
ne

 w
ay

 r
oa

d
S

ug
ge

st
io

n 
to

 e
as

e 
th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 th
e 

ro
ad

 £
3,

50
0 

T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
rd

er

Congestio
n

85

Med

Loughton

Queens 
Road

S
pe

ed
 h

um
ps

T
o 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
sp

ee
d 

to
 tr

af
fic

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
hi

ll
£3

0,
00

0

Speeding

86

Med

Lambourn
e

Market 
Place

P
rio

rit
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
ve

r 
br

id
ge

P
rio

rit
y 

to
 th

os
e 

ve
hi

cl
es

 le
av

in
g 

A
br

id
ge

 a
nd

 tr
av

el
lin

g 
to

w
ar

ds
 T

he
yd

on
 B

oi
s

F
or

w
ar

d 
vi

sa
bi

lit
y 

m
ay

 w
el

l b
e 

a 
co

nc
er

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 p

rio
rit

y 
w

or
ki

ng
£3

,5
00

Congestio
n

87

High

Waltham 
Abbey

Roundhill
s

E
ld

er
ly

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
si

gn
 o

r 
ro

ad
 h

um
ps

A
 s

ch
em

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
ro

ad
 h

um
ps

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 e

st
at

e 
an

d 
no

t i
n 

is
ol

at
io

n 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f r
ed

uc
in

g 
ve

hi
cl

e 
sp

ee
ds

 a
s 

de
si

re
d

 £
1,

00
0-

1,
50

0 
pe

r 
si

gn
; 

£4
0,

00
0 

fo
r 

hu
m

ps
 

Speeding

88

Med

Buckhurst Hill

Forest Edge

C
on

ve
rt

 s
in

gl
e 

ye
llo

w
 

lin
e 

al
on

g 
fo

re
st

 s
tr

et
ch

 
to

 d
ou

bl
e 

ye
llo

w
 li

ne
, a

s 
co

ng
es

te
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

at
 

w
ee

ke
nd

s 
w

he
n 

ha
ll 

is
 

hi
re

d 
ou

t
£3

,0
00

Parking

97

Med

Sheering

Luxford 
Place

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 L
ux

fo
rd

 P
la

ce
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

fr
om

 L
ux

fo
rd

 M
oo

rin
gs

 a
re

 p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 L

ux
fo

rd
 P

la
ce

N
ar

ro
w

 r
oa

ds
 o

f r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

£3
,5

00
 w

ai
tin

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

Parking

98

Med

Theydon 
Bois

B172 Abridge 
Road

C
le

ar
w

ay
 O

rd
er

 £
3,

50
0 

T
ra

ffi
c 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

O
rd

er

Congestion

Page 104



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

99

High

Buckhurst Hill

Brook Road

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
at

 
si

gn
al

 ju
nc

tio
n

A
 fe

as
ab

ili
ty

 s
tu

dy
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d
 £

10
0,

00
0+

 

Pedestrian

10
0

Med

North 
Weald

Thornwoo
d Road

P
eg

as
us

 C
ro

ss
in

g
A

 fe
as

ab
ili

ty
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
pe

de
st

ria
n/

ho
rs

e 
flo

w
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d
 £

15
0,

00
0+

 

Pedestrian

10
2

High

Waltham Abbey

Roundhills j/w Honey 
Lane

Ju
nc

tio
n 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

th
at

 r
es

id
en

ts
 a

re
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

in
g 

ill
eg

al
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 o

n 
bo

th
 s

id
es

 o
f t

he
 e

nt
ry

 to
 th

e 
R

ou
nd

hi
lls

 e
st

at
e 

fr
om

 H
on

ey
 L

an
e.

  T
hi

s 
ca

us
es

 a
 d

ai
ly

 p
ro

bl
em

 fo
r 

yo
un

g 
m

ot
he

rs
 w

ith
 p

ra
m

s 
an

d 
pu

sh
ch

ai
rs

 a
nd

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

 / 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
us

er
s,

 a
s 

th
ey

 tr
y 

to
 p

as
s 

on
 th

e 
pa

ve
m

en
t.

T
he

y 
al

l h
av

e 
- 

m
os

t d
an

ge
ro

us
ly

 -
 to

 m
ov

e 
in

to
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 r
oa

dw
ay

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

ge
t p

as
t t

he
se

 o
bs

tr
uc

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 p

ar
ke

d 
ill

eg
al

ly
 o

n 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

fo
ot

pa
th

s.
 E

xi
st

in
g 

D
Y

L 
ju

nc
tio

n 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n

£3
,0

00

Junction Improvement

10
3

Med

North Weald

Main Road

D
ro

p 
ke

rb
 r

eq
ue

st
s

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r 

th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 d

ro
pp

ed
 k

er
bs

 o
pp

os
ite

 K
iln

 R
oa

d 
fo

r 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 Y

or
k 

R
oa

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
he

dg
e.

 £
10

00
 p

er
 p

ai
r 

Informal 
crossing

10
4

Med

North Weald

Wellington Road and 
Hampden Close

T
ra

ffi
c 

ca
lm

in
g 

an
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

re
st

ric
tio

ns

M
y 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
re

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 W

el
lin

gt
on

 R
oa

d 
as

 a
 r

at
 r

un
 to

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

on
 S

at
ur

da
ys

, p
lu

s 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f c

ar
s 

pa
rk

ed
 in

 th
e 

ro
ad

 a
t t

he
 ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 
W

el
lin

gt
on

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
H

am
pd

en
 C

lo
se

, w
hi

ch
 o

bs
cu

re
 th

e 
vi

ew
 o

f o
nc

om
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 o
n 

W
el

lin
gt

on
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 n

o 
do

ub
t c

au
se

 a
 s

er
io

us
 a

cc
id

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re

. I
 th

in
k 

th
er

e 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

an
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
in

 W
el

lin
gt

on
 R

oa
d/

H
am

pd
en

 C
lo

se

E
xi

st
in

g 
ju

nc
tio

n 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

in
 fo

rc
e 

(s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f '

no
 w

ai
tin

g 
at

 a
ny

 ti
m

e'
 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
).

 S
ho

ul
d 

a 
ro

ad
 h

um
p 

sc
he

m
e 

be
 p

ro
po

se
d,

 a
 lo

ng
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
sh

al
l n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
18

 m
on

th
s

 £
40

,0
00

 h
um

ps
 

Speeding and Parking

10
6

Med

North Weald

Woodside junction 
High Road

A
n 

is
la

nd
 a

t t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 W

oo
ds

id
e 

an
d 

N
M

 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d

A
n 

is
la

nd
 a

t t
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 W

oo
ds

id
e 

an
d 

N
M

 H
ig

h 
R

oa
d 

w
as

 s
ai

d 
to

 b
e 

th
e 

be
st

 w
ay

 o
f d

is
co

ur
ag

in
g 

sa
t-

na
v 

ju
gg

er
na

ut
s 

tu
rn

in
g 

in
 a

nd
 g

et
tin

g 
st

uc
k 

at
 a

 
w

id
th

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
n 

so
ut

h 
of

 th
e 

tr
ad

in
g 

es
ta

te
 (

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 a
llo

w
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
ve

hi
cu

la
r 

ac
ce

ss
 fr

om
 B

13
93

)

T
he

 ju
nc

tio
n 

is
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f a

 r
es

id
en

tia
l a

re
a,

 w
ith

 a
  4

0 
m

ph
 s

pe
ed

 c
am

er
a 

ne
ar

-b
y.

 P
ro

po
sa

l w
ill

 s
til

l a
llo

w
 H

G
V

 a
cc

es
s 

as
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 n
ee

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g
in

du
st

ria
l u

ni
ts

 to
 h

av
e 

de
liv

er
ie

s
£6

,0
00

Junction Improvement

Page 105



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

10
8

Med

North Weald

Woodside - 
Thornwood

W
ei

gh
t r

es
tr

ic
tio

n

E
xt

re
m

el
y 

he
av

y 
du

ty
 lo

rr
ie

s 
ar

e 
be

co
m

in
g 

m
or

e 
pr

ol
ifi

c.
 R

es
id

en
ts

 c
an

no
t 

co
nt

em
pl

at
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 d
ow

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
 to

 th
e 

pa
rk

 w
ith

 tw
o 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 th

e 
pr

am
, 

w
he

n 
sh

e 
co

ul
d 

co
m

e 
fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 w
ith

 a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 ju
gg

er
na

ut
 lo

rr
y 

on
 o

ne
 o

f
th

e 
bl

in
d 

be
nd

s 
or

 e
ve

n 
a 

'b
oy

 r
ac

er
'. 

N
o 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
! S

he
 h

as
 n

o 
ch

oi
ce

 b
ut

 to
 

dr
iv

e.
 A

nd
 w

ha
t a

bo
ut

 th
e 

lis
te

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 W
oo

ds
id

e?
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 h
as

 a
 w

ei
gh

t r
es

tr
ic

tio
n

Weight restriction

11
0

Med

Moreton,
Bobbingworth & The 

Lavers

Bobbingworth Mill

V
ill

ag
e/

G
at

ew
ay

 s
ig

ns
 £

1,
00

0 
pe

r 
pa

ir 
(p

er
 s

ite
) 

Signage

11
2

Buckhurst Hill

Amberley Road

P
o

te
n

ti
al

 ju
n

ct
io

n
 

al
te

ra
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 o

n
e-

w
ay

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
rd

er
T

o
 t

ak
e 

p
la

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 o
f 

R
u

ss
el

l R
o

ad

 (
O

n
e 

W
ay

 O
rd

er
/ 

S
ig

n
ag

e 
ap

p
ro

x.
 £

2,
00

0)
 

D
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 e

st
im

at
e 

ju
n

ct
io

n
 a

lt
er

at
io

n
s 

as
 it

 
w

ill
 b

e 
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
o

n
 

w
h

at
 is

 b
ei

n
g

 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 c

o
u

ld
 r

an
g

e 
b

et
w

ee
n

 £
20

,0
00

 -
 

£5
0,

00
0.

Junction Improvement

11
3

Abridge

London Road 
and Ongar Road

V
ill

ag
e 

g
at

ew
ay

s
 A

p
p

ro
x.

 £
50

0 
p

er
 g

at
e 

Speeding

11
4

Buckhurst Hill

Oak Lodge/Grange 
Hill

S
p

ee
d

in
g

/T
ra

ff
ic

ca
lm

in
g

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

o
n

e 
o

r 
tw

o
 s

p
ee

d
 h

u
m

p
s.

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 m

ad
e 

in
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

to
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
re

si
d

en
ts

.
 A

p
p

ro
x.

 £
15

,0
00

 

Speeding

11
5

Stapleford 
Abbotts

Near primary 
school

P
ed

es
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

ss
in

g

 If
 it

 is
 a

 z
eb

ra
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 
ap

p
ro

x.
 £

20
,0

00
. A

 P
u

ff
in

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
ap

p
ro

x.
 

£9
0,

00
0 

(+
£2

0,
00

0 
fo

r 
d

es
ig

n
)

Pedestrian

Page 106



L
o

ca
l H

ig
h

w
ay

 P
an

el
 "

R
es

er
ve

 L
is

t"
 2

01
0/

11

Highways Ref

Ranking

Ward/Parish

Road/Location

P
ro

je
ct

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
O

ff
ic

er
 C

o
m

m
en

t
  P

re
vi

o
u

s 
In

d
ic

at
iv

e 
E

st
im

at
ed

 C
o

st
s 

q
Type/Causation of 

Request

11
6

Buckhurst Hill

Westbury Road/Palmerston Road/ Russell 
Road/Amberly Road

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

al
l t

ra
ff

ic
 

m
ea

su
re

s 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

T
h

e 
p

ro
b

le
m

s 
h

er
e 

ar
e 

co
m

p
le

m
en

ta
ry

. T
h

er
e 

is
 n

o
 r

ea
so

n
 w

h
y 

ve
h

ic
le

s 
co

u
ld

n
’t

 s
af

el
y 

g
o

 u
p

 W
es

tb
u

ry
 R

d
 f

ro
m

 R
u

ss
el

l R
d

 t
o

 a
cc

es
s 

S
co

tl
an

d
 

R
d

.  
It

 m
ig

h
t 

n
ee

d
 a

 s
ig

n
 t

o
 s

to
p

 p
eo

p
le

 d
ri

vi
n

g
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ju
n

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 
P

al
m

er
st

o
n

 R
d

. (
th

er
e 

is
 a

lr
ea

d
y 

o
n

e 
o

n
 S

co
tl

an
d

 R
d

).
  A

t 
R

u
ss

el
l 

R
d

/A
m

b
er

le
y 

R
d

 ju
n

ct
io

n
, d

ri
ve

rs
 m

is
u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 t
h

e 
o

b
lo

n
g

 c
o

n
cr

et
e 

p
at

ch
 a

n
d

 d
ri

ve
 t

h
e 

w
ro

n
g

 s
id

e 
o

f 
it

, s
o

 t
h

at
 t

h
ey

 e
n

d
 u

p
 d

em
o

lis
h

in
g

 a
 

re
si

d
en

t’
s 

fr
o

n
t 

w
al

l w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 s
w

er
ve

 t
o

 a
vo

id
 a

 v
eh

ic
le

 c
o

m
in

g
 u

p
 

A
m

b
er

le
y 

R
d

.  
 A

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

in
i r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

o
n

 P
al

m
er

st
o

n
 R

d
 a

t 
jc

n
 w

it
h

 
W

es
tb

u
ry

 R
d

, t
h

er
e 

h
as

 r
ec

en
tl

y 
b

ee
n

 a
n

 a
cc

id
en

t 
in

vo
lv

in
g

 s
er

io
u

s 
in

ju
ri

es
.  

D
ri

ve
rs

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

kn
o

w
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

, d
ri

vi
n

g
 u

p
 P

al
m

er
st

o
n

 R
d

 
(o

ft
en

 q
u

it
e 

fa
st

),
 w

ill
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
al

ly
 lo

o
k 

ri
g

h
t 

fo
r 

tr
af

fi
c 

th
ey

 t
h

in
k 

m
ay

 
co

m
e 

o
u

t 
o

f 
W

es
tb

u
ry

 R
d

 (
b

u
t 

th
er

e 
is

n
’t

 a
n

y 
b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
th

e 
o

n
e-

w
ay

 in
 

W
es

tb
u

ry
) 

an
d

 t
h

ey
 a

re
n

’t
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 f
o

r 
ve

h
ic

le
s 

tu
rn

in
g

 r
ig

h
t 

o
ff

 
P

al
m

er
st

o
n

 R
d

 a
t 

th
e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

(h
en

ce
 t

h
e 

ac
ci

d
en

t)
. T

h
ey

 n
ee

d
 a

ls
o

 
to

 lo
o

k 
le

ft
 t

o
 c

h
ec

k 
n

o
th

in
g

 is
 c

o
m

in
g

 o
u

t 
o

f 
th

e 
u

p
p

er
 p

ar
t 

o
f 

W
es

tb
u

ry
 

R
d

 o
r 

th
at

 a
n

yo
n

e 
is

 u
si

n
g

 t
h

e 
p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 c

ro
ss

in
g

 b
ey

o
n

d
 t

h
e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

C
o

n
t.

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 d

et
ai

ls
: 

R
es

id
en

ts
, w

h
o

 li
ve

 in
 t

h
e 

to
p

 h
al

f 
o

f 
W

es
tb

u
ry

 L
an

e,
 w

an
t 

to
 t

u
rn

 r
ig

h
t 

at
 t

h
e 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
t 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
th

ei
r 

ro
ad

, a
n

d
 t

h
ey

 t
el

l m
e 

th
ey

 a
re

 t
er

ri
fi

ed
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f 
fa

st
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
m

in
g

 u
p

 
th

e 
h

ill
.  

S
ev

er
al

 t
im

es
 w

h
en

 I 
h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 d

ri
vi

n
g

 d
o

w
n

 P
al

m
er

st
o

n
 R

d
 a

 
ca

r 
h

as
 c

o
m

e 
u

p
 t

h
e 

h
ill

, f
ai

le
d

 t
o

 s
ig

n
al

 u
n

ti
l t

h
e 

la
st

 m
in

u
te

 (
o

r 
n

o
t 

at
 

al
l)

 a
n

d
 h

as
 s

w
u

n
g

 a
cr

o
ss

 m
e 

to
 e

n
te

r 
th

e 
lo

w
er

 p
ar

t 
o

f 
W

es
tb

u
ry

 R
o

ad
.

L
o

ca
ls

 s
ay

 it
 w

as
 s

af
er

 a
s 

a 
p

la
in

 c
ro

ss
ro

ad
s 

b
ef

o
re

 t
h

e 
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

t 
w

as
 p

u
t 

in
.

N
ew

ly
 a

d
d

ed
 -

 (
09

/1
2/

10
) 

O
ff

ic
er

s 
su

g
g

es
t 

a 
fe

as
ib

ilt
y 

st
u

d
y 

o
f 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

 f
o

r 
th

is
 s

it
e 

fi
rs

t 
o

f 
al

l.
 F

ea
si

b
ilt

y 
st

u
d

y:
£3

-
4,

00
0 

ap
p

ro
x.

Traffic Improvements

11
7

Buckhurst Hill

Farm Way/Forest 
Edge/Station Way

T
ra

ff
ic

 c
al

m
in

g
 o

n
 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 W

ay
/F

ar
m

 W
ay

, 
ju

n
ct

io
n

 w
ar

n
in

g
 s

ig
n

s 
o

r 
V

A
S

s

N
o

th
in

g
 e

ve
r 

g
et

s 
d

o
n

e 
th

er
e,

 a
n

d
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 d
em

o
lis

h
in

g
 w

al
ls

 o
cc

u
r 

re
g

u
la

rl
y.

  I
t 

is
 a

 m
ir

ac
le

 n
o

-o
n

e 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 k
ill

ed
 t

h
er

e,
 a

s 
th

er
e 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

co
lli

si
o

n
s/

n
ea

r 
m

is
se

s.
 T

ra
ff

ic
 t

ra
ve

ls
 f

as
t 

(t
o

o
 f

as
t)

 o
n

 
S

ta
ti

o
n

 W
ay

/F
ar

m
 W

ay
 a

n
d

 t
h

er
e 

ar
e 

b
en

d
s 

b
o

th
 w

ay
s 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ak

e 
it

 
d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 s
ee

 if
 t

h
e 

ro
ad

 is
 c

le
ar

 t
o

 c
ro

ss
 o

r 
en

te
r 

fr
o

m
 F

o
re

st
 E

d
g

e.
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 c
al

m
in

g
 is

 n
ee

d
ed

 o
n

 S
ta

ti
o

n
 W

ay
/F

ar
m

 W
ay

 -
- 

at
 le

as
t 

w
ar

n
in

g
 

si
g

n
s 

o
r 

re
d

u
ce

d
 s

p
ee

d
 li

m
it

s 
o

r 
V

A
S

s-
- 

d
ri

ve
rs

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 r
o

ad
s 

th
in

k 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

a 
cl

ea
r 

ru
n

 a
n

d
 a

re
n

`t
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
q

u
it

e 
b

u
sy

 ju
n

ct
io

n
.  

N
ew

ly
 a

d
d

ed
 -

 (
09

/1
2/

10
)

V
A

S
S

ig
n

s:
 £

6,
00

0 
ap

p
ro

x.
 

p
er

 s
ig

n
. T

ra
ff

ic
 C

al
m

in
g

 
£2

0-
£3

0,
00

0

Speeding

11
8

Roydon

Church Mead junction 
with High Street

Ju
n

ct
io

n
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n

Id
ea

lly
 p

ar
ki

n
g

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
o

n
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 s
to

p
 c

ar
s 

p
ar

ki
n

g
 n

ea
r 

to
 t

h
e 

ju
n

ct
io

n
 a

s 
th

is
 is

 c
au

si
n

g
 a

n
 o

b
st

ru
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 in

te
rf

er
ri

n
g

 w
it

h
 

si
g

h
t 

lin
es

. H
o

w
ev

er
, u

n
ti

l t
h

is
 c

an
 b

e 
d

o
n

e,
 t

h
e 

P
ar

is
h

 a
re

 r
el

yi
n

g
 o

n
 

th
e 

P
o

lic
e 

to
 d

ea
l w

it
h

 t
h

e 
is

su
e 

o
f 

o
b

st
ru

ct
io

n
. T

h
es

e 
ar

e 
m

ai
n

ly
 

co
m

m
u

te
rs

 p
ar

ki
n

g
 t

h
ei

r 
ca

rs
 a

n
d

 w
al

ki
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

st
at

io
n

 s
o

 t
h

at
 a

re
 

th
er

e 
al

l d
ay

. T
h

is
 ju

n
ct

io
n

 is
 n

o
w

 a
n

 a
cc

id
en

t 
w

ai
ti

n
g

 t
o

 h
ap

p
en

n
ew

ly
 a

d
d

ed
 -

 (
02

/1
2/

10
)

 A
p

p
ro

x 
£2

,0
00

 

Junction Improvement

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Matters Arising
	Manor Road Chigwell Safety Audit

	5 Local Highways Panel Report
	LHP Report 2011/12
	2011/12 Report Appendix A
	2011/12 Report Appendix B


